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Our Purpose

TO LEAD THE GROWTH 
AND SUCCESS OF HOCKEY 
IN AUSTRALIA.

Hockey is a sport played across Australia, from 
the city to the country, equally by men and 
women, boys and girls. 

Our national teams are among the best in 
the world and regularly achieve podium 
performances at major benchmark events.   

The sport of hockey is a welcoming, family 
friendly and inclusive sport and we wish to fully 
embrace existing and new - players, coaches, 
officials, staff, volunteers and fans alike. 

We consider enjoyment across all aspects of the 
game to be a central philosophy which underpins 
how we operate. 

We also strongly believe that every participant 
should have the opportunity to strive to achieve 
their personal aspirations as a player, coach, 
official, volunteer or paid administrator. 

Our values are central to our way of working.  
At Hockey Australia we will: 
• continue to LEAD by working collaboratively with  

our stakeholders.

• operate with INTEGRITY in all areas of our work by placing 
the best interests of hockey in Australia at the centre of  
any decision. 

• pursue EXCELLENCE both on and off the field of play. 

• INCLUDE and welcome any person who wants to engage 
in, and enjoy, our wonderful sport. 

Our Values:

LEADERSHIP INTEGRITY

EXCELLENCE INCLUSION
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As hockey builds on its proud 100 plus year history, 
we continue to evolve and adapt to changing 
times and expand our influence and impact on the 
Australian community. 

At the time of preparing this year’s report, the impact of 
COVID-19 has significantly disrupted all aspects of our lives. 
From a hockey perspective, this has meant that many of the 
activities that we had planned to deliver in 2020 have had to 
be delayed or cancelled. While we remain optimistic that we 
will resume the playing of hockey soon, we cannot assume 
that everything will continue to be as it once was. Perhaps 
now more than ever, we will look to each other for support as 
we navigate our way through an uncertain time. We have no 
doubt the community of hockey will be strengthened through 
this current challenge and we look forward to reconnecting 
with one another through playing the game we all love. 
Until then, we take this opportunity to reflect on the many 
achievements across the hockey landscape in 2019. 

Hockey needs to be constantly evolving, and in 2019 we 
launched our new strategic plan for the period 2019 – 2022. 
Working with Nielsen Sports, Hockey Australia undertook 
a review of our strategic plan to ensure we were fit for 
purpose in the coming phase. The new plan is built upon six 
foundation pillars that endeavour to respond to a dynamic 
external environment and ensure we can continue to grow our 
game. Underpinning these pillars are the areas of Finance and 
People that round out our key areas of focus.  

In 2019, a revitalised national hockey league was delivered 
and supported by the first ever broadcast partnership 
with Fox Sports and Kayo Sports. This is a milestone 
achievement for our sport which establishes a platform for 
the future and creates new possibilities for hockey to be 
able to reach further into the Australian community. The 

collaboration between Hockey Australia and our Member 
Associations was critical to the success of relaunching the 
national league which has enabled the sport to attract new 
commercial partnerships at both the League and Team levels. 
The engagement of Kellogg’s Sultana Bran as the naming 
rights partner for the Sultana Bran Hockey One League and 
Westfund as supporting partner have been game changers. 
An independent Board was established to lead the new 
League and we congratulate the Chair, Colin Richardson, 
General Manager Tony Dodemaide and the Sultana Bran 
Hockey One League Board on their hard work and success  
to date as we look forward to building on this together in  
the future. 

Across the year, we welcomed new people into key leadership 
roles aligned to the new plan including Tim Cherry, 
General Manager Commercial, Communication and Events, 
and Lauren Watt as General Manager Finance, HR and 
Administration. Lauren and Tim join the current executive 
team of Michael Johnston (General Manager Legal, Strategy 
and Growth) and Toni Cumpston (High Performance Director) 
and bring significant industry experience to support our work.   

In a strategic sense, and as a national priority, we identified 
the need to consider our overall operating model and have 
made good progress around the area of ‘one management’. 
At the May Council meeting, the Hockey Co-op project was 
activated, which has provided a platform for hockey as a 
whole to collaborate on designing ways of working together 
to deliver an improved hockey system through efficient, 
effective and seamless operations. Support from Sport 
Australia has enabled the appointment of Kerry Harris as the 
Senior Manager for Strategic Projects to work with Hockey 
Australia and our Member Associations to progress the 
Hockey Co-Op project on behalf of our community. 

Hockey Australia President 
and Executive Report 
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HOCKEY AUSTRALIA PRESIDENT AND EXECUTIVE REPORT

There needs to be a compelling case for change and to that 
end the project will require hockey to look at our collective 
strengths and respectfully challenge the status quo to 
design an operating model that is bespoke for hockey now 
and into the future.  The leadership of hockey in Australia 
have opted-in to this project and had open conversations 
to understand what that future state will look like, what the 
challenges are and how we are going to get there. Getting 
that balance right will be a continual focus for the project.

The inaugural FIH Pro League that featured the top men’s 
and women’s hockey nations was launched in 2019. While 
the delivery of eight home match days in Melbourne, Sydney, 
Hobart and Perth was a huge challenge to our small head-
quarters team, Pro League provided Australian hockey fans 
with the opportunity to watch world class hockey at home 
and on Fox Sports. In June, the Kookaburras were crowned 
the inaugural winners of the FIH Pro League after defeating 
Belgium in the Grand Final, while the Hockeyroos were 
runners up to the Netherlands.  

Both national teams achieved the all-important qualification 
for the 2020 Olympic Games, albeit via slightly different 
routes. The Kookaburras qualified directly through winning 
our continental championship event, the Oceania Cup, by 
successfully defeating the increasingly competitive Black 
Sticks from New Zealand in Rockhampton. After drawing with 
New Zealand, but losing on goal difference at the Oceania 
Cup, the Hockeyroos were required to play in a qualifying 
series against Russia. The team secured their berth to Tokyo 
with a 2-0 series win in Perth. While the Games have now been 
moved to 2021, our teams are incredibly well positioned in 
the lead into Tokyo. Regardless of recent results, both teams 
recognise that the Olympic tournament will be fierce and we 
will need to be at our very best if we are to be on the podium.  

Results for the National Teams capped off a strong year for 
the high-performance program. The Kookaburras finished 
the year as the number one ranked men’s team while 
the Hockeyroos finished the year world ranked second. 
Kookaburras Head Coach, Colin Batch, was awarded the FIH 
Men’s Coach of the Year, Rachael Lynch was awarded the FIH 
Goalkeeper of the Year and Amy Lawton was recognised by 
the Australian Institute of Sport as the Emerging Athlete of  
the Year. 

The Oceania Cup was successfully delivered by the Oceania 
Hockey Federation (OHF) and the Rockhampton Hockey 
Association in September 2019. Hockey Australia recognises 
the hard work by the small team at the OHF including 
President, Clare Prideaux, Bob Claxton, Gill Gemming, David 
Peebles and Nihal Seneviratne along with the fantastic 
effort made by Barbara Knowles and her team from the 
Rockhampton Hockey Association to deliver this event in 
regional Australia. 

Our Masters, Indoor and Country communities also continued 
to flourish across 2019 and we are proud to be a sport that 
can cater and support such diversity. Hockey Australia 
recognise that we must represent all hockey players, not just 
the elite, if we are to harness the power of a single hockey 
nation and build our critical mass. 

The Masters National Championships continue to grow as one 
of the key events in the Hockey Australia domestic calendar. 
The new Hockey Australia Masters Committee, which replaces 
two separate Committees – the Australian Masters Hockey 
Association (Men) and the HA Women’s Masters Committee 
(Women) has now been in place across the full year in 2019. 
There has been solid progress across the year by way of 
merging these two Committees where the long-term objective 
is to ensure synergies are achieved to streamline activities for 
the benefit of the Masters community.  

As part of its commitment to promoting diversity and 
inclusion, Hockey Australia joined Pride in Sport in 2019 as a 
member and participated in the Pride in Sport Index for the 
first time. Hockey has long been recognised as an inclusive 
sport. We are proud to have players of all backgrounds, 
including all sexual orientations and by joining Pride in 
Sport as a member, we made a public statement about our 
commitment to that inclusion. This commitment coincided 
with the Perth Pythons being awarded the LGBTI Community 
Sport Award at the 2019 Pride in Sport Awards.

The steady expansion of the social hockey offering, Hockey 
Sixes across 2019 remains positive. Led by Hockey Victoria 
with support from Sport Australia, this important project 
seeks to offer flexible participation opportunities to new or 
lapsed players. This strategy responds to the broader social 
trend of seeking flexibility while also offering fitness, fun and 
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HOCKEY AUSTRALIA PRESIDENT AND EXECUTIVE REPORT

community connection. Sport Australia’s ‘Sporting Schools’ 
program continues to provide a strong platform into schools. 
In 2019 and 2020, a renewed emphasis will be placed on the 
Hookin2Hockey program to expand into new territories and 
engage children aged 5 – 10 years old and encourage them  
to participate.  

A full migration to revolutioniseSPORT was agreed in 
2019 that will result in Hockey Australia and all Member 
Associations operating once more from a single membership 
platform. This move will provide enhanced capacity to offer 
improved services to members, including a more streamlined 
member registration process, payment processing capability 
and management reporting. Now that this transition has  
been completed, we will be looking to enhance our CRM 
capability by building on this membership platform and 
further improving the experience for members, clubs,  
and associations. 

In 2019, National Sporting Organisations were encouraged to 
join the National Redress Scheme, which has been created in 
response to the recommendations by the Royal Commission 
to Institutional Responses to Child Sexual Abuse. Hockey 
Australia agrees in principle with the need to facilitate redress 
to people who have been impacted. In the coming period, 
Hockey Australia will undertake further work to determine our 
financial capability to be a participant. 

Internationally, Australia continues to be well represented in 
key roles. In May, Clare Prideaux was appointed President of 
the Oceania Hockey Federation. A former Hockeyroo, Hockey 
Australia Board Member and leading Australian sports 
administrator, Clare will provide fresh energy and leadership 
to the OHF at a critical time for the sport in the region. On 
behalf of the Board of Hockey Australia, we sincerely thank 
Pam Elgar for the work that was undertaken across her time 
as President where she represented the interests of hockey 
across the Oceania region, including on the Executive Board 
of the FIH. 

Sue Briggs and Norman Same were appointed to the Board 
of World Masters Hockey in August. Hockey Australia Life 
Member, Ken Read has continued to play an active role in 
guiding the first year of the FIH Pro League as a member of 

the FIH Pro League Management Panel. To have someone of 
Ken’s experience and knowledge of hockey has proven to be 
important in supporting the delivery of Pro League in 2019. 
Hockey Australia also recognises the work of other Australians 
on various committees including Trini Powell (FIH Rules 
Committee) and David Peebles (FIH Competitions Committee) 
Lyn Hill and Cheyne Hackett (Oceania Hockey Federation 
Officiating Committee) and Kitty McCaskie (Oceania Hockey 
Federation Competitions Committee). 

From a financial perspective, it has been extremely pleasing 
to be reporting an operating surplus for 2019 of $144,428.  
Pro League is both one of hockey’s greatest opportunities, 
but one that comes with a level of commercial risk. While we 
are pleased with the end of year result, we will be undertaking 
a review of our operations across the year, particularly in  
light of COVID-19, to ensure our business is right sized for  
the future. 

Under the guidance of Lauren Watt, we have undertaken 
a commitment to ensure our staff are best supported at 
Hockey Australia by re-establishing a commitment to people 
and culture. For any small business, this area is often under 
resourced, but recognised as being critical and we are 
excited about implementing a series of strategies to support 
staff development and wellbeing moving forwards.     

Australian hockey officials continued to play a leading role on 
the global hockey scene and made important contributions 
to the delivery of significant international events including 
the Olympic Qualification events, FIH Series Open Finals and 
the inaugural FIH Hockey Pro League. Performances across 
2019 culminated in key appointments to the 2020 Olympics 
for Tammy Standley who will be the Technical Delegate for 
the Women’s competition, Minka Woolley – Umpires Manager 
for the Women’s competition, Josh Burt – Technical Official as 
well as Adam Kearns and Aleisha Neumann who will be part 
of the Umpiring team. Congratulations also are extended to 
additional Australian international officials who secured panel 
upgrades following strong individual performances. 
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On behalf of the Board, we pass on our gratitude to Lyn 
Hill and Josh Burt as chairs of the respective Women’s and 
Men’s Officiating Appointment Panels for their ongoing 
commitment. 

Hockey Australia is extremely proud to have extended our 
partnerships with Fortescue Metals Group as the naming 
rights partner to the Kookaburras and Ausdrill (Perenti) as 
naming rights partners with the Hockeyroos. The extension 
of these partnerships provides much needed additional 
corporate support to assist Hockey Australia in the delivery 
of our projects including the FIH Pro League and towards our 
national teams. 

The engagement of Kellogg's Sultana Bran as naming rights 
partner with the Hockey One League as well as supporting 
partner for both the Kookaburras and Hockeyroos has been 
a new and exciting step. Westfund Health Insurance were 
appointed as the official health insurance partner for both the 
Sultana Bran Hockey One League and for Hockey Australia, 
including both national teams. 

This impressive suite of brands connecting with our sport 
all recognise the relevance and potential of Australia’s most 
successful and inclusive team sport. We sincerely thank all 
of our partners including: Fortescue Metals Group, Ausdrill 
(Perenti), Kellogg’s Sultana Bran, Westfund Health Insurance, 
On The Go, the Australian Institute of Sport, Sport Australia, 
The Australian Olympic Committee, Commonwealth Games 
Australia, The State and Territory Institutes and Academies 
of Sport, SportsLink Travel, Bloomex, Just Hockey, ASICS, 
TigerTurf, CTM, Aqualyte, Kookaburra, 2XU, APE Medical  
and Elastoplast.

Four key members of Hockey Australia left in 2019. After 
almost 10 years of service of leading the commercial activities 
for the business, Shane ‘Tonks’ Tonkin left to take up a new 
and exciting role with Baseball Australia. A man who was 
always there to lend a hand, Shane will be missed by the team 
for his big personality and getting the job done attitude. 
Senior Competitions Manager Kathleen ‘Kitty’ McCaskie, and 
Gold Coast 2018 Hockey Competitions Manager departed to 
take up a new role in her home town in Canberra at Australian 
National University Sport. Delivering world class events and 

work ethic are features of Kitty’s achievements who has 
left a strong legacy within the sport. Following a short but 
successful period with Hockey Australia and significantly 
reshaping the Marketing, Commercial and Communications 
strategy, Vibeke Stisen left in early 2019 to take up external 
consultancy opportunities. After more than four years, 
General Manager Finance and Business Operations Sue 
Wharekawa left to pursue a range of new projects including 
her passion for snow sports. On behalf of the Board and Staff 
at Hockey Australia, we sincerely thank Shane, Kitty, Vibeke 
and Sue for their support and contribution.

At Board level, we recognise the significant contribution 
of former directors Larry Maher, David Moroney, Tracey 
Belbin and Tracey Scott who each played an integral role in 
driving recent changes and thank them for their important 
contribution. We also welcomed the appointments of Bryan 
Zekulich, Mary Konstantopoulos and Brent Dancer to the 
Board and look forward to leveraging their experience in  
the future.  

We thank our Member Associations as well as the many 
staff, Board members and volunteers who play a crucial 
role in helping our sport to thrive. To all of the volunteers 
who contribute an incredible amount of time to club duties, 
coaching, officiating and more – while you may be somewhat 
unheralded, you are very much appreciated and we thank you 
all sincerely. 

Melanie Woosnam

President
Hockey Australia

Matt Favier

Chief Executive
Hockey Australia
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A message from the 
Australian Sports Commission
The start of 2020 has been an extraordinarily tough 
time for Australians, including all of us committed  
to sport. 

The impact of bushfires and the COVID-19 pandemic 
have been confronting for communities, where we all 
know sport plays such an important role.

At the Australian Sports Commission (ASC), 
comprising Sport Australia and the Australian 
Institute of Sport (AIS), our energy is focused on 
supporting our partners through these times as we 
continue to advocate the importance of sport to our 
economy, productivity, health, wellbeing and culture.

We believe whole-heartedly that when we get through this 
challenging period, sport will play a prominent role in lifting 
the nation’s energy and spirits again.

Times such as these can also make us more appreciative of 
what we do have and of the success we have achieved.

Success in sport is always hard fought. But it’s a fight 
Australian high-performance sport welcomes as it continues 
to achieve success.

At the time of writing this, our Australian men’s and women’s 
hockey teams, the Kookaburras and Hockeyroos, are ranked 
two and three in the world respectively.

Last year the wonderful Ash Barty won the French Open and 
became our first female No1 tennis player since her idol, 
Evonne Goolagong Cawley, in 1976. Javelin-thrower Kelsey 
Lee-Barber set personal bests throughout the year and took 
the title at the IAAF World Championships in Doha. Dylan 
Alcott added three more Grand Slam quad wheelchair singles 
trophies to the cabinet and Sailing duo Matt Belcher and 

Will Ryan claimed the men’s 470 World Championship. In the 
pool, our swimmers won seven gold medals at the FINA World 
Championships, placing Australia fourth on the medal tally. 

This year our inspiring women’s cricket team won a fifth 
World T20 title, drawing a record crowd of 86,174 to the MCG. 
How fitting that this historical moment fell on International 
Women’s Day. These results are a testament to the tenacity 
and passion of athletes, coaches, sports staff and sporting 
organisations, which know we have all the skills and abilities 
to achieve success. 

I am proud too of the service our organisation provides 
to Australian sport each year, on behalf of the Australian 
Government.

The ASC, through Sport Australia and the AIS, delivers 25,000 
grants a year.

The AIS, funds and prepares our Olympic, Paralympic and 
Commonwealth Games to represent us at the highest level in 
international competition.

In the past few years, we have enhanced our support to 
athlete wellbeing and engagement, a move that is essential, 
especially in the current environment.

Sport Australia invests in sports participation programs, from 
our national Sporting Schools program for younger children 
through to the Better Ageing program aimed at Australians 
aged 65 and over.

So many of these grants fuel aspirations. Our Local Sporting 
Champions program supports 9,000 children a year to reach 
for their sporting dreams.

Our Women Leaders in Sport program and the AIS Talent 
program provide opportunities for women to progress their 
professional development in all roles across sport.

We continue to work with sports to modernise traditional 
governance structures in Australian sporting organisations 
and we continue to encourage environments that are 
inclusive, diverse, safe and welcoming, making sport the 
benchmark for a more equitable society. 

This was to be the year of the 2020 Olympics and Paralympics 
in Tokyo. Instead, it has been postponed to 2021, with the 
Olympic Games to be held from 23 July to 8 August 2021 and 
the Paralympics from 24 August to 5 September 2021.

We have already witnessed a great deal of positivity from 
athletes who now need to re-set. I’m confident, as a united 
sport system, we will do the same.

John Wylie AM 

Chair
Australian Sports Commission
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A message from the  
Australian Olympic Committee
The Australian Olympic Committee (AOC) is well 
positioned to deliver on the strategic initiatives 
we set for ourselves back in 2017, particularly our 
improved engagement with Members Sports, such 
as Hockey Australia. 

A deliberate strategy of listening, including sports in directing 
strategy, plus improved servicing and consultation on 
Olympic team planning.

The AOC congratulates Hockey Australia on a very successful 
year, with the Kookaburras claiming the inaugural FIH Pro 
League title and the Hockeyroos finishing runners up. Most 
importantly, both teams have qualified for the Tokyo Olympics.

Sadly, in writing this review of the year, the impact of COVID-19 
has severely impacted our athletes, their National Federations 
and of course our collective preparations for Tokyo 2020, 
which has now been postponed to 2021.

Our planning and preparations for Tokyo have been thorough. 
Our Games Operations team enjoy an excellent working 
relationship with Toni Cumpston to ensure the Hockeyroos 
and Kookaburras will have left nothing to chance. Our Games 
Operations team was on the ground in August to witness the 
Tokyo Test event where the Hockeyroos picked up a bronze.

One of the key AOC initiatives to demonstrate the power of 
sport in building resilience and other life skills for school 
students has been Olympics Unleashed, sponsored by our 
partner Optus.

The program, which takes Olympians into schools to tell 
their stories face-to-face, has been championed by some of 
hockey’s greats. 

Former Kookaburras skipper Mark Knowles has been heavily 
involved in his home state of Queensland. Hockeyroos 
great and former skipper Rechelle Hawkes was part of a 

pilot program in Western Australia which saw her visit her 
hometown of Albany, while Jodie Kenny has also received 
training and taken part in the program.

As 2019 drew to a close, more than 790 schools and 115,244 
students have had presentations from Olympians and aspiring 
athletes across QLD, NSW, SA and the ACT. Our aim is to take 
the program nationally thanks to the partnerships we have 
formed with state governments across the country.

The AOC has also stepped up to assist our Olympic sports as 
an effective advocate with government. 

The key has been promoting the value that sport brings to  
the Australian community, driving benefits in physical and 
mental health, community harmony, education as well as 
other rewards. 

Underpinning all this has been the need for clarity and 
consistency on funding for our Olympic sports for both high 
performance and participation. 

Advocacy has also included action on the National Redress 
Scheme to ensure Olympic sports can securely sign up to 
the National Redress Scheme, set up in the wake of the 
Royal Commission into Institutional Child Sexual Abuse; 
contributing to the review of the AIS Campus in Canberra and 
to a larger strategy on the facilities and support required for 
performance sport in the coming years.

Through a consensus gained at a series of roundtable 
meetings the AOC has held with the CEOs of our member 
sports, we have been able to inform governments so they 
have a much better appreciation of the challenges that 
sports must overcome if they are to fulfil their vital role in the 
Australian community. 

I must congratulate Hockey Australia CEO, Matt Favier, for 
the very active and positive role he has played in bringing the 
voice of sport to government as part of these efforts. 

Supporting Olympians has been another key initiative 
for the AOC in 2019. Olympian Opportunities focuses on 
career advice – during the competitive years, preparing for 
retirement and life as an Olympian after sport. 

Olympian and head of Athlete Services Daniel Kowalski has 
spearheaded this program with advice and input from the 
AOC Athletes’ Commission and member sports.

In acknowledging the many difficulties and issues the COVID-
19 environment has triggered, with regard to preparation and 
qualification in many cases, I believe hockey is well placed to 
come through and represent Australia with pride in 2021.

Our two teams have qualified and there’s no doubt the FIH 
Pro League has been a pioneering development that will 
continue to reap benefits once it’s in a position to resume.

It’s been exciting to see youngsters like Amy Lawton come 
through the Youth Olympic Games pathway in 2018 and then 
into the senior team, making her debut in the Pro League  
in 2019. 

Hockey Australia has been part of a team effort in 2019. For 
the AOC’s part, we would like to thank the big team that 
makes our collective achievements possible. Our family of 
Olympic sports and those who support them. 

As a team we will move through the challenges and make the 
most of the opportunities that lie ahead.

Matt Carroll

Chief Executive Officer
Australian Olympic Committee
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Commonwealth Games Australia proudly 
investing in our hockey players

Whilst not a Commonwealth Games year, 2019 was a busy 
one for Commonwealth Games Australia as we built on the 
legacies of the Gold Coast 2018 Commonwealth Games.

Following the conclusion of Gold Coast 2018 related activities, 
Commonwealth Games Australia shifted its focus to the 
governance review initiatives commenced in 2017. Most 
notable was the introduction of an independent rather than 
representative Board.

Commonwealth Games Australia commenced a ‘refresh’ of 
its Strategic Plan – First Among Equals - to reset our priorities 
to embrace the future beyond Birmingham 2022 to the 2026 
Games. With a strong focus on our dual vision of ‘Pursuing 
Sporting Excellence’ and ‘Connecting with Communities’, the 
revised Plan incorporates five strategic priorities: Delivering 
Team Success; Connecting with Communities; Presenting a 
Powerful Brand; Leading the Way; and Hosting Great Games.

To help achieve our goal of ‘Delivering Team Success’ 
Commonwealth Games Australia has been a significant 
financial contributor and partner for Hockey Australia, 
delivering just over $1 million to the sport and our Hockeyroos 
and Kookaburras in the lead up to the Gold Coast Games.  

During the 2018 Games cycle, CGA provided $21.6 million 
in funding to member sports through programs ranging 
from youth to the elite. That is a significant contribution to 
Australian sport, for which we are proud, and we remain 
committed to working with our sports to improve our 
programs into the future. 

On the road to Birmingham 2022 our financial support 
continues with Commonwealth Games Australia committing 
$193,000 in 2018/19 and 2019/20 to support programs which 

will help develop the next generation of Hockeyroos  
and Kookaburras.

Work is well underway for Birmingham 2022 and we look 
forward to building on the successes of the Gold Coast 2018 
campaign and continuing our work with Hockey Australia to 
deliver team success together in Birmingham. 

It is important that we continue to engage with our member 
sports and the Australian sporting system, and this will be a 
priority of the Commonwealth Games Australia Board. 

We thank Hockey Australia and the members of the 
Hockeyroos and Kookaburras for their continued efforts  
and support.

A message from  
Commonwealth Games Australia 

Craig Phillips

Chief Executive Officer
Commonwealth Games Australia
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STRATEGIC PILLAR 1

Address the inefficiencies  
in our sport
2019 saw the launch of Hockey Co-Op, an opt-in whole of 
sport project to work collaboratively together in finding 
strategic and operational areas of alignment. The Hockey 
Co-Op project plan was endorsed at the May 2019 Council 
meeting and this was followed by the appointment of a 
dedicated project manager in August 2019 to oversee and 
coordinate the various project components.

Through funding from Sport Australia, KPMG were engaged 
to undertake a national audit to understand the current 
operating context of hockey’s national body and member 
associations, and where financial and non-financial benefits 
might exist. KPMG based their approach on providing a body 
of evidence to hockey’s decision makers to further progress 
the strategic priority of operating in a more efficient, cohesive 
and consistent way.

The intent of KPMG’s work was to understand and analyse at 
a whole of sport level, hockey’s

• Governance and strategic plans

• Financial performance

• Policies and procedures

• Organisational structure and workforce composition, and

• Supply arrangements across jurisdictions

The national audit consultation process enabled the HA 
Board and management and the MA Presidents, Boards and 
CEOs to provide their data for analysis, and more importantly 
comment on the barriers that currently exist as well as what it 
will take to achieve success. Each entity was invited to provide 
their input to the national audit in a number of different 
formats; face to face and phone meetings, responses to 
requests for information and completing a survey.  
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KPMG delivered a report that:

• Provided a current analysis of the whole of sport operating and  
financial landscape

• Identified opportunities for increased alignment, consistency and efficiency 
starting with ‘low hanging fruit’

• Quantified a contestable dollar amount where the sport collectively could 
reinvest if the opportunities were pursued.

In essence, the report provided the sport with evidence-based opportunities to 
work together to deliver financial and non-financial benefits to the sport.  

A key highlight of this project was the universal acceptance of the report 
produced by KPMG that gave hockey’s leaders factual evidence of the 
governance, finance and operating landscape. A key component of the  
report was the identification of 14 opportunities where hockey could work 
cohesively together to reduce the inefficiencies in the sport across the  
areas of governance, strategy, structure and people, and finance, systems  
and technology. 

In order to digest the full content of the KPMG report and the 14 opportunities, 
it was agreed at the November 2019 Council meeting to host a Hockey 
Co-Op Design Workshop in early 2020. We would like to thank the Member 
Association Presidents, Boards and CEO’s for their continued commitment and 
high level of engagement to this project. In particular, the Unlock One Hockey 
Advisory Panel and the Presidents group that laid the groundwork to make the 
Hockey Co-Op Design Workshop happen.

The Hockey Co-Op project is made possible by funding from Sport Australia 
and we thank them for their investment in this project. Our thanks also extend 
to the Sport Australia governance team for their operational support.

Our thanks also go to KPMG who unearthed rich and valuable data and 
provided us with a foundational report guiding the next steps for the 
Hockey Co-Op.  

2020 will be a year of collaboration and design for Hockey Co-Op, having 
begun the year with the Hockey Co-Op Design workshop in January 2020 
which considered the most logical priorities including agreeing and clearly 
articulates the respective roles and responsibilities of Hockey Australia and 
Member Associations and to investigate the opportunity for a shared service 
model for the delivery of the finance function across hockey. 

STRATEGIC PILLAR 1 – ADDRESS THE INEFFICIENCIES IN OUR SPORT
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STRATEGIC PILLAR 2

Improve participant 
recruitment and retention
2019 saw a second successive year of growth in participation 
in hockey; both in overall participant numbers and club 
membership. Key areas of participant growth included: 

• Club membership (+4,266) 

• Sporting Schools (+7,563)

• Indigenous programs (+1,823) including HA’s flagship  
Pilbara Community Hockey Program supported by 
Fortescue Metals Group, and Cairns Hockey’s  
Aspire to be Deadly Program

• Accredited coaches (+1,909)

This growth was supported by the delivery of several key 
projects to help the sport better meet the needs of our 
participants. A crisis was turned into an opportunity, with 
a truly national membership registration platform being 
implemented. The move onto revolutioniseSPORT at the end 
of 2019 follows successful use of the platform in NSW and the 
ACT over the last few years. The quality of member data will 
be welcome for all in the sport.

Insights into our participants continued to reach new levels, 
with the National Member Engagement Survey being 
delivered for the first time. Understanding member needs is 
the first step to servicing them.

Social Hockey was given a major boost through receipt of 
a Sport Australia grant, which allowed for Hockey Victoria’s 
initiatives in this space to be nationalised. Dedicated staff, 
a new website, and co-investment in infrastructure saw 
new social formats delivered in late 2019, with other sites 
commencing in 2020. 

Engagement with the Masters, Indoor and Country hockey 
communities grew, with significant behind the scenes support 
for these valued groups.

Growth in schools continued, with nearly 40,000 primary 
school children experiencing hockey last year through the 
Sporting Schools program. To better leverage this, innovative 
approaches were piloted to convert these participants 
into club hockey. This involved hockey being played at 
school, after school. These school-based Hookin2Hockey 
programs saw 25% conversion from Sporting Schools into 
Hookin2Hockey, a remarkable outcome.

This foundation will be built on in 2020, with key projects 
commencing to improve HockeyEd (and the coaching  
and officiating pathways within it), align Hookin2Hockey  
with Sultana Bran Hockey One League, provide clubs with 
improved resources and support, and develop an overarching 
social inclusion plan.

5,576 Accredited Coaches

Hookin2Hockey

School Managed

Sporting Schools

CLUB/ASSOCIATION 
REGISTRATIONS

52%
FEMALE

48%
MALE

Indigenous11,111
3,620

50,000
39,842

93,024

2,227 Accredited Officials

 

205,450
2019 Registered Participants
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STRATEGIC PILLAR 3

Ensure sustained 
international success
HA HIGH PERFORMANCE UNIT
The HP Unit are based at the Perth Hockey Stadium, using  
the world class facilities at the West Australian Institute of 
Sport (WAIS).

2019 was an exciting year for the HP unit with the inaugural 
FIH Pro League and Sultana Bran Hockey One competitions 
being introduced. Athletes and staff alike loved playing 
matches against the best in the world and were delighted to 
be able to do this in front of our home crowds. 

Funding received from our major partners FMG, Ausdrill 
(Perenti Group), Sport Aus, AIS and Commonwealth Games 
Australia has been critical allowing our athletes to perform at 
their peak.

For the male athletes, the significant financial support from 
Commonwealth Games Australia has meant that HA has  
been able to:

• provide 6-7 talented young hockey players access to our 
elite Perth DTE with the Senior Squad on an increased 
frequency, 

• provide our male National Development Squad and 
National Junior Squad with increased international 
competition opportunities.

For female athletes, HA has utilised its Commonwealth Games 
Australia funding support to:

• enhance the capacity of its SIS-SAS partners to improve 
their athletic pathway development, 

• work with the respective coaches, strength and 
conditioning coaches and physiotherapists from the 
network through two activities: a workshop (Perth 2019) 
and camp (February 2020). 

Hockeyroos and Kookaburras squads welcomed new 
members in 2019 and farewelled some much loved players.
Jason Duff and Steve Allen joined the HP Unit based in Perth 
replacing departed staff members.

Hockey Australia would like to acknowledge Mark Hickman 
who left the National Programs in 2019 to take up a role 
with England Hockey, thank you Mark for your valuable 
contribution to Australian Hockey over multiple  
Olympic cycles.

In December we announced our 2020 Tokyo Olympic National 
squads and held our inductions with a distinctive Japanese 
and Olympic flavour. It was with great excitement for the year 
ahead that the HP Unit closed our doors for the Christmas 
break on 13 December 2019.  

NATIONAL TRAINING CENTRE  
(NTC) NETWORK
The NTC network plays a significant role in supporting  
the national program, identifying, developing and 
transitioning athletes into the senior high performance  
daily training environment.

In 2019, athletes from the National Development Squads 
and Junior Squads participated in international competition 
in Australia, Spain and Malaysia. Men’s program athletes 
participated in international matches against teams from 
Austria, Belgium, Germany, Great Britain, India, Netherlands, 
and Spain. Women’s program athletes participated in matches 
against New Zealand and India.

NTC athletes were also involved in visiting athlete 
scholarships to the HP Unit in Perth, national camps and  
the NTC challenge.
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STRATEGIC PILLAR 3: ENSURE SUSTAINED INTERNATIONAL SUCCESS

The 2019 calendar year was a remarkable one for the 
Kookaburras. Despite losing their opening two matches 
of the year, Australia’s national men’s hockey team were 
crowned Champions of the inaugural FIH Pro League in 
June, defeating Belgium 3-2 in the Final and reclaiming the 
world number one ranking in the process. The Kookaburras’ 
dominance throughout the competition was highlighted 
by a number of athletes taking out individual awards. Aran 
Zalewski was named Player of the Tournament, Blake 
Govers (Top Goal Scorer), Jacob Whetton (Player of the 
Final), and Tyler Lovell (Best Goalkeeper of the Final).

After a short break, a training and acclimatisation camp in 
Ibaraki, Japan followed, which included an international 
match against the host nation a year out from the then 
scheduled Tokyo 2020 Olympics.

Automatic qualification for Tokyo 2020 came in September 
after defeating New Zealand in the Oceania Cup, a best-of-
three series held in Rockhampton. Mission accomplished, 
attention for all squad members turned to playing in the first 
season of the Sultana Bran Hockey One League, Australia’s 
new national league, from which the 2020 Kookaburras 
Olympic squad was selected.

The Kookaburras’ stellar 2019 was further recognised with 
Head Coach Colin Batch named FIH 2019 Coach of the Year. 
Aran Zalewski and Eddie Ockenden (Player of the Year), 
Tyler Lovell (Goalkeeper of the Year) and Blake Govers 
(Rising Star) were all shortlisted for individual FIH awards.

KOOKABURRAS 2019 RESULTS

FIH Pro League

 2/2   Netherlands  5-5 (1-4)
 3/2   Belgium  1-4
 10/2  Germany  4-2
 16/2  Great Britain 2-0
 2/3  Spain  2-1
 16/3  Argentina  3-2
 17/3  New Zealand  5-1
 25/4 New Zealand   4-3
 4/5  Argentina  2-1
 9/6  Great Britain 2-2 (3-4)
 13/6  Spain 2-3
 16/6  Germany  2-1
 19/6  Belgium  2-0
 22/6  Netherlands 4-1
 28/6  Great Britain  
  (Semi-final)  6-1
 30/6  Belgium (Final)  3-2

India Series (Perth)

 15/5  India  4-0
 17/5  India  5-2

Japan Tour

 7/8  Japan 3-0

Oceania Cup 

 5/9  New Zealand  4-0
 7/9  New Zealand   2-2
 8/9  New Zealand   3-0

70 GOALS SCORED
33 GOALS CONCEDED

17  
WINS

1  
DRAW

4  
LOSSES

Kookaburras in 2019
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STRATEGIC PILLAR 3: ENSURE SUSTAINED INTERNATIONAL SUCCESS

The Hockeyroos continued their standing as one of the 
world’s leading women’s hockey teams as they finished 
the year ranked second and booked their place at the 
Tokyo Olympics.

A predominantly successful inaugural FIH Pro League 
campaign saw them reach the Final, only to suffer a  
nail-biting penalty shootout loss to the number one 
ranked Netherlands.

Following a short break, the Hockeyroos headed to Tokyo 
to compete in the Olympic Test Event at the official hockey 
venue for the 2020 Olympics (now scheduled to be held in 
2021). The Hockeyroos improved as the tournament went 
on, rounding it off with a solid victory over China.

At the Oceania Cup in Rockhampton and with automatic 
Olympic qualification at stake, the Hockeyroos drew their 
best-of-three series against New Zealand. However, the 
Black Sticks Women would book their ticket to Tokyo due 
to a superior goal difference.

This left the Hockeyroos needing to defeat Russia in 
a two-match series in Perth in October to secure their 
Olympic berth, which they did courtesy of a dominant 9-2 
win on aggregate.

Olympic qualification ended the 2019 international 
calendar and the athletes concluded the year by 
competing in the Sultana Bran Hockey One League, from 
where the 2020 Hockeyroos Olympic squad was selected.

On the individual front, Rachael Lynch capped off an 
outstanding year by being named the FIH Women’s 
Goalkeeper of the Year to go with her award of 
Goalkeeper of the FIH Pro League Final. 

HOCKEYROOS 2019 RESULTS

FIH Pro League

 2/2   Netherlands  1-0
 3/2   Belgium  1-2
 9/2  China  4-3
 10/2  Germany 2-2 (3-1)
 16/2 Great Britain  3-0
 2/3  USA  2-1
 16/3  Argentina 0-1
 17/3 New Zealand   1-3
 25/4  New Zealand    5-1
 4/5  Argentina 1-1 (1-3)
 10/5  USA 4-0
 2/6  China  3-2
 9/6  England  4-2
 16/6  Germany 3-1 6-1
 19/6  Belgium  0-1
 23/6  Netherlands  1-3
 27/6  Argentina   
  (Semi-final)  1-1 (4-3)
 29/6 Netherlands (Final) 2-2 (3-4)

Tokyo Test Event 

 17/8  China 2-3
 18/8  India 2-2
 20/8  Japan 2-2
 21/8  China 3-1

Oceania Cup 

 5/9  New Zealand  1-3
 7/9  New Zealand   3-2
 8/9  New Zealand   1-1

Olympic Qualifiers 

 25/10  Russia 4-2
 26/10  Russia   5-0

61 GOALS SCORED
42 GOALS CONCEDED

15  
WINS

3  
DRAWS

9  
LOSSESHockeyroos in 2019
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STRATEGIC PILLAR 3: ENSURE SUSTAINED INTERNATIONAL SUCCESS

Awards and milestones
HOCKEY AUSTRALIA  
HIGH PERFORMANCE AWARDS
Kookaburras Player of the Year – Eddie Ockenden

Hockeyroos Player of the Year – Jane Claxton & Kaitlin Nobbs

Kookaburras Most Goals – Blake Govers (20)

Hockeyroos Most Goals – Emily Chalker, Mariah Williams (8)

HA Athlete Wellbeing & Engagement Award –  
Georgia Wilson

FIH AWARDS
Coach of the Year (Men) – Colin Batch

Goalkeeper of the Year (Women) – Rachael Lynch

KOOKABURRAS

Major Career Milestones
50 appearances – Jake Harvie, Tim Howard

100 appearances – Flynn Ogilvie

350 appearances – Eddie Ockenden

Debuts
Jack Hayes

Retirements
Nil

All-time stats
Most Caps

Eddie Ockenden 366 (2006–present)

Jamie Dwyer 365 (2001–2016)

Mark Knowles 324 (2004–2018)

Most Goals

Jamie Dwyer 243 (2001–2016)

Mark Hager 179 (1985–1996)

Jay Stacy 172 (1987–2000)

HOCKEYROOS

Major Career Milestones
50 appearances – Madison Fitzpatrick,  
Savannah Fitzpatrick, Lily Brazel

150 appearances – Brooke Peris

200 appearances – Rachael Lynch

Debuts
Michaela Spano

Amy Lawton 

Retirements
Nil

All-time stats
Most Caps

Madonna Blyth 342 (2004–2016)

Nikki Hudson 303 (1993–2008)

Rechelle Hawkes 279 (1985–2000)

Most Goals

Alyson Annan 166 (1991–2001)

Katrina Powell 141 (1994–2004)

Jodie Kenny 111 (2011–present)
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STRATEGIC PILLAR 4

Increase the visibility and 
commercial viability of hockey
Throughout 2019, the organisation worked hard to grow 
the hockey brand and subsequently its social and digital 
engagement with the hockey community and sports fans 
more broadly. There was also an emphasis on growing and 
diversifying HA’s revenue streams to mitigate financial risk 
and reduce the reliance on government funding. The year 
was also one of transition, particularly in terms of personnel. 
Kitty McCaskie (Events), Ben Somerford (Media & PR), Vibeke 
Stisen (Executive Leadership Team), and Shane Tonkin 
(Commercial) all moved on, ‘Tonks’ after nearly 10 years of 
service. We are grateful and thankful for their wonderful 
contributions to HA and the sport.

Tim Cherry commenced as General Manager – Commercial, 
Communications and Events in July and continues to lead 
HA into its next exciting phase in these areas. Notably, 
Kookaburras goalkeeper Tyler Lovell took on the role of 
Commercial Partnerships Manager in mid-December in an 
exciting coup for HA.

To expand hockey's media exposure a concerted effort has 
been made to build new media relationships as well as 
re-establish old ones. The introduction of the new FIH Pro 
League, while still largely unknown to Australian audiences, 
gave the Hockeyroos and Kookaburras more matches both 
at home and abroad, helping to increase the visibility of our 
world class national teams.

Furthering this was the launch of the Sultana Bran Hockey 
One League, which saw every match of Australia’s new 
revamped domestic competition shown LIVE for the first time 
and matches held in all major cities except Darwin. With both 
the Hockeyroos and Kookaburras qualifying for the Tokyo 
Olympics, coupled by the passionate hockey community, 
hockey is in a strong position to capitalise on what continues 

to be an extremely tough sporting landscape both in a media 
and commercial sense. Across 2019 hockey received some 
strong media coverage, especially during Hockey One. 

On the marketing side, digital assets for all HA and Sultana 
Bran Hockey One events were produced and a significant 
HA website project commenced to transition away from 
antiquated technology to an interim site. In addition to this, 
the Sultana Bran Hockey One League website was developed 
and launched before commencement of the season. HA’s 
digital strategy was also furthered by entering partnerships 
with Ticketek, Kore Konnect and YouGov.

The events team delivered 17 events in 2019, from National 
Championships to Masters, as well as supporting the Sultana 
Bran Hockey One League and home Pro League matches. In 
a difficult and crowded sporting environment, most events 
were delivered to budget and a high standard. Notably, two 
Hockeyroos Olympic qualification matches against Russia 
were also successfully executed at short notice.

Commercially the focus was on consolidating strong, long-
term relationships with various partners, especially Fortescue 
Metals Group, Ausdrill (Perenti) and Kookaburra Sports. 

We welcomed Kellogg’s Sultana Bran to the HA sponsor 
family. This is testament to the values that both Kellogg and 
hockey share – family friendly, inclusiveness, gender equality 
and integrity. 

Also joining our sponsor family is one of Australia’s largest 
and most trusted health insurance brands – Westfund.

A fundraising/philanthropic foundation project had been 
in the works; however, this was placed on hold and will be 
reviewed for 2020.

Notable achievements included:

• Official launch of the Sultana Bran Hockey One League 
season received exposure on Sunrise.

• ‘Take over’ of The TODAY Show’s weather segment at 
Ryde Hockey Club to promote the FIH Pro League and 
Hockey One. The six LIVE crosses reached 1.7m people and 
generated an estimated $500,000 of commercial value.

• Kellogg’s Sultana Bran became the inaugural naming rights 
partner of Hockey One and the official breakfast cereal of 
the Kookaburras and Hockeyroos.

• Westfund joined both the Sultana Bran Hockey One League 
and the Kookaburras and Hockeyroos as the official health 
insurer.

• Popular Australian entertainment personalities Andy Lee 
and Stephen Curry filmed a video to promote the Hockey 
One League which received widespread exposure.
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STRATEGIC PILLAR 5

64% male and 36% female
39.1% of the audience is aged between 25–34

50% male, 49% female, 1% nonbinary/unspecified
34.9% of the audience is aged between 18–24
28.7% of the audience is aged between 25-34

52% male, 47% female, 1% nonbinary/unspecified
29.7% of the audience is aged between 18–24
26.7% of the audience is aged between 25–34







41.1 million 
impressions in the 

last 12 months

181,799 
link clicks 

through social

97,104 
people subscribed
to the monthly eDM

2.3 million 
engagements (likes,

comments, shares, etc.)

336,996
followers

(including LinkedIn)

249,345 
website visitors 

this year

SOCIAL REACH

Enhance the digital experience
In 2018 a new website project began, aimed at moving from 
our previous antiquated platform to a more user-friendly, 
contemporary version. The previous version had regular 
issues, so an interim measure was put in place with SportsTG 
while the new project was commenced with revSport. The 
project was delayed in 2019 due to financial constraints, 
however is now on-track to be up and running in August 
2020. When launched it will provide a web platform that will 
increase engagement with our audience and compliment HA’s 
social media platforms. 

A sponsorship CRM system from Kore Konnect was also 
implemented which has greatly increased HA’s ability to 
monitor and report on its sponsorship agreements. The 
system was complimented by the introduction of YouGov 
analytics (a community of over 8 million people around the 
world whose views are analysed and published as selected 
findings). This research is used by HA in developing tailor-
made partnership proposals for prospective sponsors  
and to better understand our fans through deep dive 
consumer insights.

Notable achievements:

• Overall reach increased to 62 million. Over 3,000 articles 
were written about HA and Hockey One, at the value of over 
$87 million according to media monitoring service iSentia.

• Number of followers across HA’s social media platforms 
surpassed 335,000. The comms strategy of storytelling has 
helped audiences become more engaged and connected 
with the teams, athletes, and events.

Looking to 2020 the focus is on continuing to set high 
standards for the quality and presentation of events. We plan 
to also further develop a new digital and online content model 
that is both contemporary and inclusive with an increased 
focus on video content and one that listens to our audience’s 
needs. We are excited about working in closer collaboration 
with each Member Association to enhance our digital and 
social media offerings.
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STRATEGIC PILLAR 6

Safeguard the 
integrity of our sport
The integrity of Australian hockey is in an enviable position 
following an unprecedented year of activity. 2019 saw the 
introduction of national policy frameworks across both 
integrity and child safeguarding.

The National Framework for Ethical Decision Making and 
Integrity in Australian Hockey was released in March 2019, 
and provides a new level of substance to the sport’s integrity 
arrangements. This has included significant steps to ensure 
Hockey Australia is equipped to respond to the rising 
threats of match-fixing in sport at a time Hockey is receiving 
unprecedented broadcast coverage.

This work was acknowledged late in 2019 when Hockey 
Australia received formal recognition as the Sport Controlling 
Body by Government regulators, allowing HA to place greater 
controls over bet types offered on Australian Hockey and 
receive product fees to reinvest back into integrity operations.

In recognition of the steps taken by HA, the Commonwealth 
Government’s National Integrity of Sport Unit has again 
provided Hockey with a Low rating in its threat assessment.

Hockey also took enormous strides in its response to child 
safeguarding. This began in April with HA releasing its Child 
Safegaurding Policy, which soon morphed into the Safe 
Hockey Project. In partnership with all Member Associations 
and Sport Australia, HA was able to engage the services of 
Delroy Consulting to deliver this important project. The result 
has been the Safe Hockey Framework, a truly national set  
of policies designed to provide safety for children and  
young people.

Safe Hockey also saw a first in sport approach whereby all 
Board members, employees, coaches, support personnel, 
and athletes (both national teams and all players at underage 

national championships) receive face to face education. In 
total, over 1000 individuals received face to face education 
across 40 sessions delivered across the country.

This significant piece of work will continue through 2020,  
with online education and club-facing resources to be 
developed to help provide a culture of safety for our children 
and young people.
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STRATEGIC PILLAR 7

Ensure financial  
sustainability
Financial Result
Over the past couple of years, it has been a key focus at 
Hockey Australia to diversify our revenues and build our cash 
reserves, allowing us to focus on the future of our game at 
all levels and withstand unexpected events. We are pleased 
to be able to report to our members that we have achieved 
consecutive operating surpluses which have strengthened 
our financial position.

55%4%

15%

17%

Key achievements
The main financial achievements for Hockey Australia  
in 2019 were:

• An operating surplus of $144k in 2019, compared with a 
surplus of $109k in 2018

• A 27% revenue increase up to $14.7m due to revenue 
generated from hosting Pro League events, in addition to 
Sport Australia grant funding received to support the Move 
it Aus, One Management and Policy Review projects

• An improved overall net asset position of $896k, up from 
$776k in 2018

• A free cash position (cash less restricted funds) of $1.08m, 
compared with a free cash position of $0.7m in 2018

Other achievements include:

• Significant improvement in our National Insurance 
Program coverages with no increase in cost to our 
participants through entering insurance partnerships with 
Honan and Sportscover

• Improved collaboration and trust between Hockey 
Australia and our member associations through regular 
meetings, knowledge sharing and working hand in hand on 
national financial, risk management and insurance projects 

• Strengthening of our internal corporate governance 
practices, financial management and reporting processes  

• Implementing a truly collaborative budgeting, planning 
and forecasting process throughout the organisation

Looking to the Future
Given the economic impacts arising from COVID-19, it is more 
important than ever that we continue to review the financial 
model and our risk management framework to ensure that 
we are best meeting the needs of the sport. This includes 
ensuring we are getting the best goods and services at the 
most economical prices, that we maintain our stringent cost 
control measures and that we keep one eye on the financial 
future by implementing a longer term multi-year budget 
aligned to our strategic plan that allows us to capitalise on 
opportunities. We are confident that this will ensure that 
we not only survive this pandemic, but we future proof the 
financial sustainability for hockey in Australia.

9%

ASC Grants

Levies

Event Revenue

Sponsorship

Participation, Other Grants, Sundry

2016

2019 Revenue Split

2016–2019 Operating Profits

2017 2018 2019

(101,544)

(148,996)

109,214

144,428
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Strengthen employee 
engagement and retention
Our people are at the heart of everything we do at Hockey 
Australia. Our staff bring innovative ideas, new ways of 
thinking and role model the HA values to help ensure HA is a 
successful and high-performing organisation. We know if we 
create positive experiences, flexible work and development 
opportunities for our team, we can bring out their best and 
deliver on what is most important for our hockey participants, 
community and partners.

In 2019, Hockey Australia launched a range of initiatives and 
tools to align our people with our vision and to assist our 
people to manage performance, develop their skills and to 
live a healthier and happier life. 

At the inaugural staff strategic planning day held in early 
December, our people were able to gather together to 
focus on the future of hockey in Australia and achieve 
better alignment with the wider aims of the organisation. 
Throughout the year our people took advantage of our newly 
implemented employee benefits program in addition to a 
range of other learning and development opportunities.

Furthermore, as part of our ongoing focus and commitment 
to supporting the mental health of our team members 
particularly in the current environment, Hockey Australia 
has partnered with the Victorian Chamber of Commerce 
to invest in mental health essentials training for managers 
and employees which has equipped our teams with the 
knowledge, skills and confidence to provide assistance to 
direct reports and peers. 

At Hockey Australia we want to recognise and reward 
our people who make a wonderful contribution to our 
organisation and role model our values of leadership, 
integrity, excellence, and inclusion. In 2019, we implemented 
our inaugural 'Values Awards' which is a peer nominated 
program aimed at recognising and celebrating the 
achievements of our team members. 

After appointing our first team member with a human 
resources focus in 2019, we look forward to expanding on 
our commitment to our people in 2020, strengthening our 
employee engagement and continuing to enable our people 
to make a fantastic contribution to hockey. 

STRATEGIC PILLAR 8
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Commissions  
and committees

Hockey Australia reviewed the need to reform the HA Indoor 
Advisory Group in late 2018 and invited MA’s to nominate a 
member for appointment to the IAG, with the opportunity to 
nominate a maximum of 2 members if there was a vacancy 
from another State. Matt Favier and Michael Johnston 
conducted a workshop for those appointed IAG members 
attending the Festival of Hockey in Goulburn, also inviting the 
men’s and women’s national team coaches. The purpose of the 
workshop was to test the proposed content of the Strategic 
Plan and how it relates to indoor.

Members appointed to the IAG were:

Chair: Lyn Hill 

Appointed members:

• Rebecca Hotchkis (ACT) – withdrew from IAG 15/10/19;  
not yet replaced

• Paul Tucker (QLD)

• Alexandra Lupton (NSW)

• Simon Beaton (NSW) – withdrew from IAG on 8/4/19; 
replaced by Blair Chalmers (NSW)

• Ben Seccull (VIC)

• Dr. Robyn Lawrence (WA)

• Natalie Sproule (TAS) – ex officio member

• John Mowat – HA

National Team Coaches were appointed in late 2018 for 
the term up until and including the next Indoor World Cup 
which was proposed to be held in February 2021 (this has 
subsequently been confirmed with Belgium as the host 
country). The positions of Assistant Coach were also appointed 
in early 2019 for the same term.

Indoor Advisory Group (IAG) 
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COMMISSIONS & COMMITTEES: INDOOR

Men

Head Coach: Steve Willer

Assistant Coach: Liam Dixon

Women

Head Coach: Mark Sandhu

Assistant Coach: David Ogden

The Indoor Festival of Hockey commenced the Hockey 
Australia Competitions in January 2019 returning to the 2018 
Hosts, Goulburn, NSW.  

The Festival structure to run back to back tournaments saw 
a change of order this year with the Under 13 tournament 
starting on 4 January followed by U15, U18, U21 and finally the 
Open tournament which was completed on Australia Day. The 
Open Women’s competition was enhanced by the inclusion of 
a team from Midlands in New Zealand who brought the total 
of teams to 8. Initially Midlands had nominated teams to both 
the Open Men and Women and whilst this didn't eventuate, 
both the Midlands Association and Hockey Australia are keen 
to further this initiative in 2020.

An exciting Hockey Australia initiative for 2019 was the 
Live Streaming of semi-finals and finals of the Under 21 
Indoor Championships and the entirety of the Open Indoor 
Championships. This was due to the support from Destination 
NSW and Goulburn Mulwaree Council as well as from HA 
Marketing/Communications department and was streamed 
through to the Hockey Australia YouTube Channel. The 
stream did not feature commentary, although it did include 
graphics, score board, team line ups, goal scorers, etc direct 
from AltiusRT over the top of the footage. It was a great 
step forward in sharing the Festival of Indoor Hockey with 
supporters, friends and family back home or anyone wishing 
to watch indoor hockey. 

New South Wales again dominated the winner’s podium at the 
2019 Festival, successful in U13 Girls and Boys; U18 Girls and 
Boys; U21 Men and Women and Open Men. However, Western 
Australia successfully defended the Open Women to win gold 
for the second year in a row. Queensland won the U15 Girls 
and Victoria the U15 Boys showing the development of other 
States in the younger age groups. Goulburn’s Veolia Arena 
provides a popular first class playing surface and the local 
hospitality was again exceptional and well supported again 
by Goulburn Mulwaree Council and Destination NSW. The 
Indoor Festival of Hockey is a massive event with continuous 
tournaments over 24 days and the volunteers of Goulburn 
and the NSW Hockey family again provided the support to 
the success of another Indoor Festival. The IAG continues 
to recognise the outstanding contribution made by all state 
coaches, managers, physios and all of the officials who make 
these tournaments possible and successful, thank you! 

There were numerous highlights for the Indoor competitors  
at the 2019 Indoor Festival:

• Both Australian Indoor Coaches were keen to provide 
opportunity for under age players as well as Senior 
National players to attend Training Camps and Tours. 
Selection Policy was updated to reflect an Opt In process 
for players to nominate for Open/U21 and U18 training 
camps in addition to an Open tour and Under 21 tour 
to Europe in late 2019. The selection process included 
the Australian Coaches and the appointment of other 
independent coaches in attendance at the Festival, who 

were not coaching in the age group or gender being 
selected. This was well facilitated by John Mowat, from HA. 
Additionally the state team coaches were asked to assist 
with feedback on players utilising a player selection tool. 
2019 was the first occasion in which a 24-player training 
squad has been selected for U18 women and men.

• Camps and tours were attended by the players listed 
below in this report. Additionally, observer coaches were 
invited from all States to attend the Under 18 and Open/
U21 training camps held in Wollongong in October and 
Coaches from Hockey Queensland and Hockey NSW took 
up these opportunities.

• To continue to grow interest and skills in touring team 
positions of Managers and Physios, EOI’s were called for 
these positions for the tours only. 

The following appointments were made: 

Open Men Manager, Austria: Marc Pike (WA)

Open Women Manager, Austria: Temeka Curley (WA)

Physio for Austria tour (self funded): Leigh Iavcovangelo

U21 Men Manager, Russia: Liam Dixon (NSW)

U21 Women Manager, Russia: Kris Hooley (Qld)

Masters Indoor 2019 also saw Wollongong host a Masters 
Women’s Indoor Challenge with 10 teams competing in 
the O/35 and O/40 competitions, 5 teams in the O/50 and 
O/60 competitions. The Masters Women were welcomed to 
Illawarra Indoor Centre at Unanderra to try their new floor and 
competition was played on the 2 courts from 29 November 
to 1 December. Thanks to our Hockey NSW friends and 
volunteers at Unanderra, always hardworking and welcoming. 
Also to the officials who attended and made this event 
possible, we appreciate you all.

A Masters Men’s Indoor Challenge was also proposed but  
did not get sufficient nominations to allow the competition  
to proceed.
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AUSTRALIAN TEAMS ON TOUR IN 2019

Competed at 100th Open Indoor Hockey 
Tournament, 'Vienna Classic Indoor 2019'
Open Men - Played final against Post SV Wien and after a 4-4 
score, lost 2-3 on shoot outs.

Andrew Scanlon (VIC), Ben Hanlan (TAS), Brady Anderson (NS), 
Brandan Horner (NSW), Brendan Hill (ACT), Isaac Pane (VIC), 
Jarrod Bass (QLD), Josh Gregory (NSW), Troy Rossiter (QLD), 
Troy Sutherland (ACT), William Orth (NSW), Zach Meaden (VIC)

Head Coach: Steve Willer

Team Manager/Assistant Coach: Marc Pike

Physiotherapist: Leigh Iacovangelo 

Competed at 100th Open Indoor Hockey 
Tournament, 'Vienna Classic Indoor 2019'
Open Women – Played final against AHTC Club, winning 3-2.

Liz Duguid (WA) Capt, Tayla Britton (WA), Erin Burns (NSW), 
Caitlin Burns (NSW), Maddie De Silva (WA), Kelsey Hughes 
(NSW), Amelia Leard (NSW), Kyah Gray (NSW), Alissa Pearson 
(TAS) – toured but DNP; Anna Roberts (WA), Emma Scriven 
(NSW), Nicole Yearbury (QLD), Zoe Newman (NSW) – replaced 
Alissia Pearson

Head Coach: Mark Sandhu

Manager: Temeka Curley

Competed at 25th Open Indoor Hockey 
Tournament, 'Moscow Evenings 2019'
U21 Men – Finished 5th noting this was an Open age 
competition, a great result.

Player of the Tournament: Lucas Scott (AUS)

Goalkeeper of the Tournament: Joshua Blakey (AUS)

Ashley Ranford (WA), Daniel Jolliffe (NSW), Hayden Michel 
(QLD), Heath McDonald(VIC), Jack Pampling (WA), Josh Mayo 
(NSW), Matthew Tate (WA), Ryan Pace (WA), Thomas Miotto 
(NSW), Joshua Blakey (QLD), Connor Yates (QLD),  
Lucas Scott (VIC)

Head Coach: Steve Willer

Team Manager/Assistant Coach: Liam Dixon 

Competed at 25th Open Indoor Hockey 
Tournament, 'Moscow Evenings 2019'
U21 Women – Finished 5th noting this was an Open age 
competition, a great result. 

Emma Reid (WA) Capt, Brooke Anderson (VIC), Emma 
Corcoran (NSW), Aymee Dowell (QLD), Litiana Field (NSW), 
Kelsey Hughes (NSW), Keeleigh McCauley (NSW), Zoe 
Newman (NSW), Claudia Nielsen (WA), Aleisha Price (ACT), 
Riley Sutherland (VIC), Taylor Thomson (ACT)

Head Coach: Mark Sandhu

Manager: Kris Hooley

U18 Boys Training Camp Squad  
(Wollongong 4–6 Oct, 2019)
Connaigh Whitaker (ACT), Cooper Burns (VIC), Dominic Cain 
(WA), Dylan Forbes (WA), Dylan Pember (QLD), Eamon Smith 
(NSW), Harris Pilbeam (TAS), Hugh Hamilton (VIC), Julius 
Gottstein (VIC), Kael Webster (NSW), Lachlan Arneil (VIC), 
Nathan Czinner (NSW), Nathan McDonald(VIC), Sam James 
(VIC), Steven Collins (QLD), Lachlan Norberg (ACT), Michell 
Pace (WA), Vincent Harman (TAS) 

Withdrew from camp: Aden Smith (NSW), Bradley Smith 
(NSW), Connor Tuddenham (NSW), Jared Flanagan (NSW), 
Kaleb Christensen (QLD), Lachlan Cain (WA), Lain Carr (NSW), 
Lewis Fossey (QLD), Zac Profke (QLD) 

Head Coach: Steve Willer

Assistant Coach: Liam Dixon

U18 Girls Training Camp Squad 
(Wollongong 4–6 Oct, 2019)
Kaitlyn Lee (NSW), Jamie Joanne Zimmerman (VIC), Jade 
Callander (NSW), Genvieve Ferguson (QLD), Tallulah 
Gouldthorp (WA), Helen Legge (ACT), Macey Sutherland (VIC), 
Zanthe Sheargold (ACT), Liana Smith (NSW), Jessica Moffat 
(QLD), Ella Gibson (NSW), Ella Du Preez (WA), Isabella Juliette 

Bozzone (VIC), Lily Jessica Neilson (NSW), Jessie Staples 
(QLD), Natasha Ball (NSW), Tegan Neowhouse (NSW), Gemma 
Kanahoff (VIC), Summer Sutherland (ACT), Claudia Dohnt 
(QLD), Claire Hind (VIC). Shadows – Sancia Bingham (TAS), 
Rosalie Frichot (WA), Alanah Jansen (ACT)

Squad withdrawals: Eva Reith-Snare (NSW), Phoebe Bloink 
Hollier (NSW), Latesha Morante (QLD), Anniston Chappell 
(QLD), Britney De Silva (WA). Maddie De Silva – promoted to 
Open/U21 Squad

Head Coach: Mark Sandhu

Assistant Coach: David Ogden

Observer Coaches: 

Blair Chalmers (NSW), Paul Tucker (QLD), Alex Lupton (NSW), 
Ben Simes (NSW), Michael Little (NSW) 

Open/U21 Men’s Training Camp Squad 
(Wollongong 11–13 Oct, 2019)
Andrew Scanlon (VIC), Ashley Ranford (WA), Brady Anderson 
(NSW), Brandan Horner (NSW), Connor Yates (QLD), Daniel 
Jolliffe (NSW), Heath McDonald (VIC), Jarrod Bass (QLD), Josh 
Mayo (NSW), Joshua Blakey (QLD), Lucas Scott (VIC), Matthew 
Tate (WA), Ryan Pace (WA), Thomas Miotto (NSW), Tom Sinclair 
(VIC), Troy Rossiter (QLD), Troy Sutherland (ACT), William 
Orth (NSW), Zach Meaden (VIC), Josh Gregory (NSW), Hayden 
Michel (QLD), Jack Pampling (WA), Brendan Hill (ACT) 

Withdrew from camp: Benjamin Edwards (QLD), Benjamin 
Rennie (WA), Heath Ogilvie (NSW), Jackson Willie (QLD), Jake 
Sherren (VIC) 

Head Coach: Steve Willer

Assistant Coach: Liam Dixon

Open/U21 Women’s Training Camp Squad 
(Wollongong 11–13 Oct, 2019)
Alissia Pearson (TAS), Tamsin Bunt (NSW), Erin Burns (NSW), 
Anna Roberts (WA), Caitlin Burns (NSW), Amelia Leard (NSW), 
Claudia Neilsen (WA), Emma McLeish (NSW), Emma Scriven 
(NSW), Holly Evans (SA), Aymee Dowell (QLD), Zoe Newman 
(NSW), Kelsey Hughes (NSW), Taylor Thompson (ACT),  
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Emma Corcoran (NSW), Tegan Boucher (VIC), Aleisha Price 
(ACT), Emma Reid (WA), Riley Sutherland (VIC), Keeley 
McCauley (NSW), Brooke Anderson (VIC), Maddie De Silva 
(WA), Kyah Gray (NSW), Nicole Yearbury (QLD) – All shadows 
promoted to training squad

Squad withdrawals: Liz Duguid (WA), Lauren Austin (WA), Lisa 
Farrell (NSW), Sarah Johnston (NSW)

Head Coach: Mark Sandhu

Assistant Coach: David Ogden 

Manager: Kris Hooley 

Observer Coaches: 

Lyn Tucker (QLD), Alex Lupton (NSW), Ernie Orth (NSW),  
Blair Chalmers (NSW) 

We also saw a successful return of this event to Wollongong 
in January 2020 where players vied for places in the 2021 IWC 
squad. Hockey Australia and Indoor look forward to another 
extremely successful Indoor Festival.

Appointment of managers and physios for the 
2021 Indoor Hockey World Cup
Men

Manager: Ben Seccull 

Physio: Leigh Iavcovangelo

Women

Manager: Danah Dunkeld

Physio: Simone Williams

Finally, many thanks go to the members of the HA Indoor 
Advisory Group for their input and dedication, John Mowat 
and Michael Johnston for their guidance from HA and all of 
the valuable Indoor members who love to play our skilful and 
exciting game.

Lyn Hill

Chair
HA Indoor Advisory Group
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Shepparton, located in the heart of Victoria’s Goulburn Valley 
hosted the 2019 Australian Country Championships which 
was an exciting addition to the local, and Victorian, hockey 
calendar. The Championships lived up to their reputation as a 
fantastic exhibition of Australian Country Hockey at its finest. 

It is very reassuring to see the way local country associations 
and their community embrace these Championships and make 
the most of the opportunity to promote, not only hockey, but 
the community as a whole, indicating the potential and ability 
of regional associations to host such events. 

Queensland and NSW continued their dominance of the finals 
winning the women’s and men’s section respectively after a 
week of high quality and strongly contested games that kept 
the final results open until the end.

The national country teams selected at the Championships 
reflect country hockey talent and whilst the U21 completed 
a very successful tour into Malaysia (Sabah, Sarawak & 
Selangor), the Opens’ tour had to be ‘postponed’ due to the 
COVID-19 crisis. With the 2020 Championships scheduled for 
Albany in August being cancelled, it is envisaged the 2019/20 
Open Teams will be ‘carried over’ to tour in 2021.

Since the 2020 Championships to be held in Albany were 
cancelled, the 2021 event will be in Albany and Country Hockey 
looks forward to enjoying the hospitality of the West.

A note of thanks to all those who support Country Hockey at all 
levels and in doing so ensure that country players get to enjoy 
their sport and ‘live the dream’.

Michael Nelson

Hockey Australia Country

Country



29Hockey Australia Annual Report 2019

Commissions 
and committees
Masters

Masters Hockey in Australia continues to provide the 
impetus for players and officials to maintain particpation in 
the sport at the local, state, national and international level 
for people 35 years and older. 

In May 2019, Australia hosted the Trans Tasman Masters 
Challenge on the Gold Coast bewteen New Zealand and 
Australia. Fourteen age groups across both genders 
competed with Australia performing outstandingly with  
gold medals secured in the following age groups:

Australia was awarded the trophy for the  
Champion Country.

Women Men

35 35

40 40

45 45

50 50

– 55

60 60

65 65
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Women
35s – Queensland
40s – Queensland
45s – Queensland
50s – New South Wales
55s – Queensland 1
60s – New South Wales
65s – New South Wales

Men
35s – Western Australia
40s Div 1 – Victoria
40s Div 2 – WA Country 
45s Div 1 – Western Australia
45s Div 2 – Victoria
50s Div 1 – Western Australia
50s Div 2 – Queensland

55s Div 1 – New South Wales
55s Div 2 – Tasmania
60s Div 1 – Western Australia
60s Div 2 – New South Wales
65s – New South Wales
70s – Western Australia
75s – New South Wales

The 2019 Australian Masters Champuonships were held at the Gold Coast for the Women 
and in Bunbury/Busselton for the Men. Typically fierce interstate rivalries were balanced with 
friendships and respect for all partcipants. National Teams were selected to compete in the 
Masters World Cup in 2020 from these Champioships. 

Results as follows:

The Masters Indoor Challenge was held for the second time in November, 2019. The number of 
Women’s teams has steadily grown since the first event with 22 teams participating in four age 
groups. The Men’s component of the Challenge did not take place this year. Planning for the 
next Challenge is underway with consideration being given to increasing participation.  

Building on the new Masters structure, the inaugural combined Delegates’ meeting was held 
in Melbourne In December 2019. This advisory meeting provides input into the promotion, 
development and delivery of Masters. Delegates represented all MA’s along with all members 
of HAM Committee with Matt Favier, Cheyne Hackett and Pat Hall present for the entire days' 
proceedings. One year post the new structure, a review of the structure and operating model is 
planned for 2020. 

World Masters Hockey (WMH) became the sole Masters entity recognised by the FIH and is 
responsible for organising International Masters hockey globally. Its first General Assembly 
was held in mid 2019, with Sue Briggs and Norman Same elected Secretary and Treasurer 
respectively with Australia represented on all WMH Committees.

Finally, thanks to the members of the Master Committee and the Hockey Australia team who 
continue to actively promote and support Masters Hockey. 

Sue Briggs and Norman Same 

Hockey Australia Masters

COMMISSIONS & COMMITTEES: MASTERS
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Months we host Championships:  
8 out of 12 months

Total number of matches hosted: 
1059

Total number of competitions we host:  
41

Total number of athletes registered:  
4522 (4031 unique individuals)

Total number of team officials registered:  
1638 (910 unique individuals)

Total number of match officials registered:  
1727 (370 unique individuals)

Total number of goals:  
4578

Championships  
Overview and Results 
2019 was another busy year at Hockey Australia, 
delivering our full spectrum of international and 
domestic events.

The domestic season kicked off in early January, with 
700+ athletes competing at the Indoor Hockey Festival, in 
Goulburn, NSW. 

Outdoor National Championship events started with 
U15’s (Narellan, NSW) and U18’s (Hobart, TAS) being run 
concurrently. The Under 18 Championships featured an 
‘Alliance’ men's and women's team – comprised of players 
from a combination of players from Victoria, Queensland, 
Western Australia and Tasmania. Lismore in northern NSW, 
successfully hosted the Under 21 Championships in July with 
Shepparton, VIC, delivering a positive Australian Country 
Championships in August. Hobart and Hockey Tasmania once 
again hosted the U13 Carnival in October.

The Australian Masters community also enjoyed a busy year. 
In May, Hockey Australia played host to the bi-annual Trans-
Tasman Masters Challenge against New Zealand at the Gold 
Coast Hockey Centre, QLD. In September the Gold Coast, QLD, 
also hosted the Women Masters Australian Championships, 
which saw 39 teams compete across two venues. 82 Men’s 
teams played in the Men’s Masters Australian Championships 
in Bunbury and Busselton, WA. The Masters event year 
rounded out with the second edition of the Women’s Masters 
Indoor Challenge in Wollongong, NSW. 

2019 also saw the introduction of the FIH Hockey Pro League 
international series. Hosting matches in February and  
March, Australia delivered the most ambitious international 
program, hosting five weekends of top-class international 
hockey across four jurisdictions; Melbourne, Hobart, Perth 
and Sydney. 

In October, Hockey Australia played host to Russia’s  
women’s team in Perth at the FIH Olympic Qualifier.

Hockey Australia would like to thank our tournament 
funding partners, who continue to support our national and 
international content, including: Destination NSW, Tourism 
WA, Tourism and Events Queensland, Events Tasmania as well 
as Goulburn Mulwaree Council, City of Bunbury, Busselton 
City Council, City of Gold Coast, and Greater Shepparton 
City Council. Without their ongoing investment into our event 
portfolio, Hockey Australia would have been unable to deliver 
these events. 
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INTERNATIONAL TOURNAMENTS AUSTRALIAN CHAMPIONSHIPS
Indoor

Under 13 Boy's Indoor Championship
1. NSW Stars  2. NSW Lions  3. VIC  4. QLD Spurs  5. ACT

Under 15 Boy's Indoor Championship
1. VIC  2. NSW  3. WA  4. ACT  5. QLD Maroon

Under 18 Men's Indoor Championship
1. NSW  2. QLD  3. VIC  4. WA  5. ACT

Under 21 Men's Indoor Championship
1. NSW  2. QLD  3. WA  4. ACT  5. VIC

Open Men's Indoor Championship
1. NSW  2. ACT  3. VIC  4. QLD  5. TAS

Under 13 Girl's Indoor Championship
1. NSW Lions  2. QLD Fire  3. NSW Stars  4. QLD Flare  5. VIC

Under 15 Girl's Indoor Championship
1. QLD Maroon  2. NSW  3. VIC  4. QLD Gold  5. WA

Under 18 Women's Indoor Championship
1. NSW  2. WA  3. QLD  4. ACT  5. VIC

Under 21 Women's Indoor Championship
1. NSW  2. ACT  3. WA  4. VIC  5. QLD

Open Women's Indoor Championship
1. WA  2. NSW  3. SA  4. TAS  5. ACT

Women's FIH Pro League 
1. NED  2. AUS  3. GER  4. ARG  5. BEL

Men's FIH Pro League 
1. AUS  2. BEL  3. NED  4. GBR  5. ARG

Men's Test Matches AUS v IND
1. AUS  2. IND

Women's Ready Steady Tokyo Hockey
1. IND  2. JPN  3. AUS  4. CHN 

Men's Test Match AUS v JPN
1. AUS  2. JPN

Women's Oceania Cup
1. NZD  2. AUS 

Men's Oceania Cup 
1. AUS  2. NZD

Women's FIH Hockey Olympic Qualifiers
1. AUS  2. RUS 

Over 35 Women's Indoor Challenge
1. Esquires  2. Gang Gang

Over 40 Women's Indoor Challenge
1. Central  2. North Canberra Eagles  3. Parkes  4. Vibrant Vics  5. Gang Gang

Over 50 Women's Indoor Challenge
1. Strikers  2. Jaffa's  3. Vibrant Vics  4. Gang Gang  5. Western

Over 60 Women's Indoor Challenge
1. Strikers  2. The Lilacs  3. The Pips  4. So What!  5. Magpies
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AUSTRALIAN CHAMPIONSHIPS
OUTDOOR

Under 13 Boy's Championship
1. VIC Venom  2. NSW Stars  3. ACT  4. QLD Cutters  5. TAS  

Under 15 Boy's Championship
1. WA Gold  2. NSW State  3. QLD Maroon  4. SA  5. ACT/VIC  

Under 18 Men's Championship
1. QLD  2. WA  3. NSW State  4. VIC  5. TAS 

Under 21 Men's Championship
1. NSW  2. VIC  3. WA  4. SA  5. QLD  

Country Men's Championship
1. NSW  2. QLD  3. VIC  4. ADF  5. WA

Country Women's Championship
1. QLD  2. NSW  3. VIC  4. ADF  5. WA

Under 21 Women's Championship 
1. QLD  2. VIC  3. WA  4. SA  5. NSW  

Under 18 Women's Championship
1. QLD  2. NSW State  3. NSW Blue  4. VIC  5. WA 

Under 15 Girl's Championship
1. VIC  2. WA Gold  3. NSW State 4. QLD Maroon  5. NSW Blue  

35+ Men's Masters Championship
1. WA  2. NSW  3. VIC  4. WA Country  5. QLD   

35+ Women's Masters Championship
1. QLD  2. VIC  3. WA  4. NSW  5. ACT

Under 13 Girl's Championship
1. QLD Cinders  2. QLD Embers  3. NSW Lions  4. VIC Venom  5. NSW Stars

40+ Men's Masters Championships
1. VIC  2. WA  3. NSW  4. QLD  5. SA

40+ Women's Masters Championship
1. QLD  2. VIC  3. NSW  4. SA  5. WA

45+/1 Men's Masters Championship
1. WA  2. TAS  3. NSW  4. ACT  5. VIC 

45+ Women's Masters Championship
1. QLD  2. NSW  3. VIC  4. WA  5. ACT

45+/2 Men's Masters Championship
1. VIC  2. WA Country 3. SA  4. NSW  5. QLD 

50+ Women's Masters Championship
1. NSW  2. QLD  3. VIC  4. TAS  5. WA

50+/1 Men's Masters Championship
1. WA  2. SA  3. VIC  4. NSW  5. QLD

55+ Women's Masters Championship
1. QLD 1  2. NSW  3. WA  4. QLD 2  5. VIC

50+/2 Men's Masters Championship
1. QLD  2. WA  3. WA Country  4. VIC  5. NSW

60+ Women's Masters Championship
1. NSW  2. VIC  3. QLD 1  4. SA  5. WA

55+/1 Men's Masters Championship
1. NSW  2. QLD 3. WA  4. WA Country  5. VIC  

65+ Women's Masters Championship
1. NSW  2. WA  3. VIC  4. ACT

55+/2 Men's Masters Championship
1. TAS  2. NSW  3. WA  4. NT  5. QLD  

60+/1 Men's Masters Championship
1. WA  2. NSW  3. WA Country  4. VIC  5. QLD

60+/2 Men's Masters Championship
1. NSW  2. QLD  3. WA  4. ACT  5. VIC

65+ Men's Masters Championship
1. NSW  2. QLD  3. VIC  4. WA  5. ACT

70+ Men's Masters Championship
1. WA  2. SA  3. VIC  4. QLD  5. NSW  

75+ Men's Masters Championship
1. NSW  2. WA  3. VIC  4. WA Country  5. QLD
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Officiating
2019 was an exciting year for officials as FIH introduced 
hockey to the world in the new format of Pro League – a 
home and away global league. Involvement for our Australian 
officials meant that they would be appointed to matches in 
other countries due to neutrality.  

For umpires Adam Kearns and Aleisha Neumann this meant 
travelling to New Zealand, China and South America over a 
number of different (long) weekends – sometimes for 28 hours 
to be involved in two matches.

Our technical officials appointed as Match Managers, 
Tammy Standley, Josh Burt, Shayley McGurk-Davey, Adam 
Webster also travelled over a number of weekends in similar 
circumstances to our umpires. Minka Woolley appointed as 
an Umpire Manager did not travel, however was watching 
live streamed matches from across the world and then video 
conferencing with umpires to discuss those matches. Our 
technical officials appointed as Judges, Brent Brown, Martin 
Courtney, Joanne Greensill, Kerry Liebenberg, Gary Marsh, 
Kim Monoghan, Scott O’Reilly, James Stewart and Jennie 
Thompson were able to be appointed within Australia due to 
neutral Match Managers on the Australian matches.  

The announcement of the 2020 Officiating Panel for the Tokyo 
Olympics in September 2019 was a highlight for our Australian 
officials with key roles being filled by several Australians. 
Tammy Standley was named as Technical Delegate for the 
Women’s Olympics, Minka Woolley as Umpire Manager, Josh 
Burt as Technical Official and the excitement for our umpires 
Adam Kearns to his second Olympics and Aleisha Neumann to 
her first Olympics. Earlier in August the 'Ready Steady Tokyo 
Hockey Event' also saw the appointment of Tammy Standley 
as Technical Delegate, Minka Woolley as Umpire Manager, 
Adam Kearns and Aleisha Neumann to the Umpire Panel and 
for the first time at this level the entire Officials team were 
named in both contingents for the men and women.
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Back home in Australia, our up and coming umpires 
continued to develop within their own jurisdictions 
along with strong performances at pathway National 
Championships. With the introduction of the Sultana Bran 
Hockey One League, our top officials again stood up to the 
challenges of this League officiating either in home States 
or on a fly in, fly out basis.

With further coaching and support, our future for 
officiating on the international and domestic scene  
looks promising. 

A final thank you must go to the HA Appointments Panel 
members – Lyn Hill and Josh Burt (co-chairs) along with 
Tammy Standley, Kim Monaghan, Angela Holloway, 
Charmain Gay, Lynn Cowie-McAlister, Murray Grime, David 
Saunders, Roy Dedman and Michael Wiemers for their 
time and dedication to ensure officials at all levels of HA 
tournaments are recognised, appointed and promoted 
within the pathway system and this includes umpires, 
umpire managers and technical officials from our Under 13 
National Festival (both Indoor and Outdoor) to our Masters 
tournaments for men and women.  

Our acknowledgement must also go to Minka Woolley who 
has been conducting a virtual Umpire Manager Briefing for 
all UM’s appointed to National Tournaments over the past 
three years, the information, knowledge and experience 
you provide is extremely valuable. Thank you to all who 
contribute in the officiating space! 

Looking forward to 2021 as the year of the Olympics in 
Tokyo and hopefully a number of other exciting hockey 
opportunities unfold for our Australian officials.

Josh Burt and Lyn Hill  

Chairs of the HA Appointments Panel

FIH Pro League
Match Manager Josh Burt FIH 
Match Manager Shayley McGurk-Davy FIH 
Match Manager Tammy Standley FIH 
Match Manager Adam Webster FIH
Umpire Manager Minka Woolley FIH
Umpire Adam Kearns FIH
Umpire Aleisha Neumann FIH

  
Azlan Shah Cup
Umpire Steve Rogers HA

  
FIH Series Finals (Various)
TO Jennie Thompson FIH
Umpire Ben DeYoung FIH
Umpire Zeke Newman FIH
Umpire Rhiannon Murrie FIH

  
AUS v IND Test Matches
TO Jarred Correia HA
TO Shayley McGurk-Davy HA
TO Tammy Standley HA
TO Nicola Ogden HA
Umpire Manager Murray Grime HA
Umpire Matthew Claxton HA
Umpire Daniel Johnston HA
Umpire Tim Pullan HA

  
8-Nations Invitational Spain
Umpire Jim Unkles HA

  
Indoor Asia Cup
Umpire Adam Barry HA
Umpire Kristy Robertson HA
  

Tokyo Test Event
TD Tammy Standley FIH
Umpire Manager Minka Woolley FIH
Umpire Adam Kearns FIH
Umpire Aleisha Neumann FIH

Oceania Cup and Intercontinental Cup
TO Kim Monaghan OHF
Umpire Manager Angela Holloway OHF
Umpire Tamara Leonard OHF
Umpire Tim Sheahan OHF

  
Sultan of Johor Cup
Umpire Matthew Claxton HA

Olympic Qualifiers (Various)
TD Josh Burt FIH
TD Tammy Standley FIH
TO Shayley McGurk-Davy FIH
Umpire Manager Minka Woolley FIH
Umpire Adam Kearns FIH
Umpire Aleisha Neumann FIH

  
U21 3-Nations Invitational
TD Martin Courtney HA
TO Rebekah Gupte HA
Umpire Manager Lynn Cowie-McAlister HA
Umpire Nicola Brown HA
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1.  DIRECTORS
The directors of Hockey Australia as at the date of signing the Directors report were:

Melanie Woosnam – President 
Qualifications: B.Ed. (Physical & Health Ed) Hons

Tenure: Hockey Australia Director for six years and elected 
President for three years

Experience: Melanie is an experienced, qualified, and 
motivated professional who has worked in the sports industry 
at executive level for over 20 years with organisations 
including Hockey NSW, NSW Futsal, Qld Touch Football and 
Water Polo Qld as well as being Managing Director of her 
own sports consultancy Active8 Sports Solutions. Melanie 
has previously held a non-executive director role with 
Stadiums Qld and sat on their Marketing and Audit, Risk and 
Compliance Committees. She is currently a director on the 
Board of QSport and recently completed 8 years as President 
of the Redlands Hockey Association. A former Hockeyroo and 
AIS scholarship holder, Melanie resides in Brisbane, Qld and is 
married to Matthew and has two children, Jay and Charli, all of 
whom are avid hockey players.

Other Responsibilities: 

• Member of Hockey Australia HR & Remuneration 
Committee

Patrick Hall – Vice President
Qualifications: MBA, FAICD, FAIM, Grad Dip ECommerce

Tenure: Hockey Australia Director for three years and elected 
Vice President in November 2019

Experience: After an extensive career with the Royal 
Australian Airforce, Patrick currently holds several non-
executive directorships including with The Dichotomy Group, 
Commonwealth Regional Network-Undersea Decision 
Superiority, and is the Vice President of RAAFA WA (Inc). 
Patrick resides in Perth and has had a lifelong playing and 
administrative association with Hockey including as a Past 
Vice President of Hockey WA and a Life Member Melville City 
Hockey Club.

Other Responsibilities:

• Member of Hockey Australia Finance, Audit & Risk 
Management Committee

• Member of Hockey Australia Masters Committee

• Member of Hockey Australia Hall of Fame Committee

Sandra Sully – Vice President
Tenure: Hockey Australia Director for seven years and elected 
Vice President in November 2019.

Experience: For the past 30 years Sandra has held news 
anchor, journalist, senior editor, and broadcast roles with 
Network Ten and 10daily. Sandra currently holds several 
non-executive directorships, patron and ambassador roles 
with the Spinal Cure Australia, Adoption Awareness Australia, 
and Do Something – Volunteering as well as being a member 
of the Carbine Club, NSW. Furthermore, Sandra established 
the hugely successful Short Black with Sandra Sully podcast 
series in 2019 which highlights the work of amazing women 
from all walks of life. Sandra lives in Sydney and loves the 
sport of Hockey, having played it at high school and at a local 
Brisbane club for many years.

Other Responsibilities:

• Chair of Hockey Australia HR & Remuneration Committee

• Chair of Nominations Committee

The directors of the Hockey Australia Limited (the “Company”) present their report together with the financial report of Hockey Australia Limited 
for the year ended 31 December 2019, and the auditor’s report thereon.

Directors' Report
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Stuart Carruthers OLY – Director 

Qualifications: B.Bus (Marketing), SHL accreditation

Tenure: Hockey Australia Director for three years

Experience: As founder and director of Carruthers Executive, 
Stuart is an experienced Executive Search Consultant and 
Coach. Stuart brings extensive experience in sales, marketing, 
human resources, finance and strategy previously working for 
major brands Carlton and United Breweries, Coca Cola Amatil, 
Lion Nathan, Maverick Rose, Slade Executive Recruitment and 
Westpac Banking Corporation. A former Kookaburra, Stuart 
was a bronze medal winner at the 1996 Atlanta Olympics and 
resides with his family in Melbourne.

Other Responsibilities:

• Chair of Hockey Australia High Performance Committee

• Member of Hockey Australia HR & Remuneration 
Committee

Juliet Haslam OAM – Director
Qualifications: B.Com

Tenure: Hockey Australia Director for three years

Experience: After an extensive career in sales and marketing, 
Juliet established her own consultancy business J5 Consulting 
which focuses on business management, sports consultancy, 
marketing solutions and corporate speaking and consults 
to leading sporting entities such as the AIS, ASADA and the 
AOC. In addition to this, Juliet currently holds several non-
executive directorships and ambassador roles with the Board 
of Governors SA Hall of Fame, Port Adelaide Football Club, 
Coastrek, Robert Gerard Emerging Athlete Development 
Fund, Premier’s Reading Challenge, Roger Rasheed Sports 
Foundation, Youth Opportunities and Lifeline Australia.  
A former Hockey SA director and Hockeyroo, Juliet is a  
2 x gold medal winner at the 1996 Atlanta and 2000 Sydney 
Olympics. Juliet resides in Adelaide with her husband and  
two teenage sons.

Other Responsibilities:

• Member of Hockey Australia High Performance Committee

• Chair of Hockey Australia Digital Advisory Committee

Colin Richardson – Director
Qualifications: BA (Hons)

Tenure: Hockey Australia Director for one year

Experience: Colin is a Managing Director of the ASX listed 
Moelis Australia Limited and non-executive director of the 
Twynam Group Holdings Pty Ltd. Colin resides in Sydney with 
his wife and three children. Another daughter is studying in 
London where she plays hockey for the Wimbledon Club.

Prior to joining the Board of Hockey Australia, he served on 
the Board of Hockey NSW for three years.

Other Responsibilities:

• Chair of Hockey One League Pty Limited

Bryan Zekulich – Finance Director
Qualifications: B.Com, FCA, F FIN

Tenure: Hockey Australia Board Appointed Director since 12 
September 2019, elected on 15 November 2019

Experience: Bryan a qualified chartered accountant has 
spent his career in professional services, joining Bombora 
Investment Managers as a Partner in July 2019, after spending 
27 years at Ernst & Young where he was the Managing Partner 
of Private Equity. He has also worked with EY in Germany, 
the UK and USA. In addition to his directorship at Hockey 
Australia, Bryan is also a Director and acts as Treasurer for the 
Australian Investment Council (previously AVCAL). Bryan has 
played Hockey in Australia, Germany and France and currently 
resides in Sydney, and is married to Suzanne with two boys, 
Max and Harry.

Other Responsibilities:

• Chair of Hockey Australia Finance, Audit & Risk 
Management Committee

• Member of Hockey Australia HR & Remuneration 
Committee

Brent Dancer – Director
Qualifications: B.Com (Acc & Finance), CA

Tenure: Hockey Australia Director since 15 November 2019

Experience: Brent is the current Chief Financial Officer 
with V&V Walsh Meat Processors & Exporters, a leading red 
meat processing, exporting and major supplier to Australian 
supermarkets. Prior to this, Brent spent 13 years working as 
a Senior Manager in the Enterprise division at KPMG in Perth 
supplying accounting, tax compliance and business advisory 
services to a range of private companies and small listed 
entities. Brent was also a member of the Kookaburras from 
2009 through to 2013 and was a member of the 2012 London 
Olympic Squad of 28 players. Brent resides in Busselton, WA 
with his wife and son.

Other Responsibilities:

• Member of Hockey Australia Finance, Audit & Risk 
Management Committee

• Member of Hockey Australia High Performance Committee

Mary Konstantopoulos
Qualifications: B.IGS, LLB (Hons), GDLP

Tenure: Hockey Australia Director since 15 November 2019

Experience: Mary is a lawyer who spent time with Clayton Utz 
before taking on her current role as Senior Regulatory Adviser 
at nbn co. Furthermore, Mary is an advocate for women 
in sport, writing for several major publications including 
NRL.com and the Roar. Mary has a hugely successful 
weekly ABC Grandstand podcast 'Ladies who League' in 
the winter and 'Ladies who Legspin' in the summer. Mary is 
also an ambassador for the Full Stop Foundation who raise 
awareness, educate, and support violence against women. 
Mary has previously held other voluntary roles, being involved 
in the Clayton Utz Pro Bono program and other associated 
initiatives including the Daystar Literacy Buddies Program and 
has been an active fundraiser for the National Breast Cancer 
Foundation and the Ovarian Cancer Research Foundation. 
Mary resides in Sydney.
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2.  COMPANY SECRETARY
The Company Secretary of Hockey Australia as at the date of signing the Director’s report was:

Matthew Favier – CEO & Company Secretary
Qualifications: B.Ed, MBA

Tenure: Hockey Australia CEO for two years

Experience: Matt is a well-respected and experienced leader in the sporting industry having 
formerly held high performance roles with Athletics Australia, the Australian Paralympic 
Committee, QLD Academy of Sport, UK Athletics, UK Sport and as Director of the Australian 
Institute of Sport. An MBA graduate and former 800m track and field athlete with the AIS, Matt 
now resides in Melbourne with his wife Michelle and three children.

Other Responsibilities:

• Attends by invitation Hockey Australia Finance, Audit & Risk Management Committee, HR & 
Remuneration Committee, High Performance Committee and Nominations Committee

3.  PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND OBJECTIVES
Hockey Australia exists to further the game of field hockey (and its derivations)  
throughout Australia.

The Company’s intent is to continue to grow the number of Australians who experience hockey 
and be exposed to the brilliance of our sport and our athletes. There has been no significant 
change in the nature of these activities during the year.

4.  REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
A review of the operations of Hockey Australia during the financial year and the financial results 
of the operations, found that during the financial year the Company continued to engage in its 
principal activity, the results of which are disclosed in the financial statements.

Hockey Australia is pleased to announce a net profit for the financial year of $144,428  
(FY18: $109,214).

5.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The outbreak of COVID-19 and the subsequent quarantine measures imposed by the Australian 
and other governments as well as the travel and trade restrictions imposed by Australia and 
other countries in early 2020 have caused disruption to businesses and economic activity. 
Hockey Australia Limited considers this to be a non-adjusting post balance sheet event and 
accordingly the financial effects of COVID-19 have not been reflected in the financial report as 
at 31 December 2019.

As the situation remains fluid (due to the evolving changes in government policy and evolving 
business and customer reactions thereto) as at the date these financial statements are 
authorised for issue, the directors of Hockey Australia Limited considered that the financial 
effects of COVID-19 on the financial report cannot be reasonably estimated for future 
financial periods. However, the directors consider that the general economic impacts arising 
from COVID-19 are expected to have a negative impact on revenue given the reliance on 
participation for subscriptions and fees, the deferment or cancellation of competitions and 
events and the refinement of programs. Hockey Australia is also reviewing all programs and 
expenditure and registering for government stimulus measures as applicable. The economic 
effects arising from the COVID-19 outbreak are expected to materially affect the results of the 
entity for the full year of 2020.
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The financial report has been prepared on the basis that 
Hockey Australia is a going concern, despite the significant 
impact of COVID-19 on operations. The going concern 
basis is considered appropriate due to the cash reserves 
held, government stimulus and the entity’s ability to reduce 
costs and generate sufficient funds from grant funding, 
membership subscriptions and sponsorship to meet its debts 
as and when they become due and payable and to continue to 
fund its ongoing operations.

No other matter or circumstance has occurred subsequent to 
year end that has significantly affected, or may significantly 
affect, the operations of the entity, the results of those 
operations or the state of affairs of the entity in subsequent 
financial years.

6.  FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Disclosure of information regarding likely developments in 
the operations of the Company in future financial years and 
the expected results of those operations is likely to result in 
unreasonable prejudice to the Company. Accordingly, this 
information has not been disclosed in this report.

7.  ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS
The Company’s operations are not regulated by any 
significant environmental regulation under a law of the 
Commonwealth or of a State or Territory.

8.   AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE 
DECLARATION

The Directors have received the Independence Declaration 
from the auditor of Hockey Australia. The Independence 
Declaration forms part of the Directors Report for the year 
end 31 December 2019.

There were no non-audit services provided by Hockey 
Australia’s auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in the 2019 
financial year.

9.  DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS
The following table sets out the number of Directors’ 
meetings held during the financial year and the number  
of meetings attended by each Director (while they were  
a Director):

10.   INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE  
OF OFFICERS

During the financial year, Hockey Australia paid a premium in 
respect of an insurance contract insuring the Directors and 
officers of the Company, against a liability incurred as such a 
director, secretary or executive officer to the extent permitted 

by the Corporations Act 2001. The contract of insurance 
prohibits disclosure of the nature of the liability and the 
amount of the premium.

Hockey Australia has not otherwise, during or since the 
financial year, except to the extent permitted by law, 
indemnified or agreed to indemnify an officer or auditor of the 
Company or of any related body corporate against a liability 
incurred as such an officer or auditor.

11.   PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF  
THE COMPANY

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring 
proceedings on behalf of Hockey Australia or intervene in 
any proceedings to which Hockey Australia is a party for the 
purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of Hockey Australia 
for all or any part of those proceedings. Hockey Australia was 
not party to any such proceedings during the year.

12.  DIVIDENDS
No dividends have been paid during or since the end of the 
financial year. The Corporations Act 2001 prohibits companies 
limited by guarantee from distributing dividends to members.

13.  MEMBERS GUARANTEE
The Company is limited by guarantee and domiciled in 
Australia. Upon winding up each member is required 
to contribute a maximum of $20 towards meeting any 
outstanding obligations of the Company. At 31 December 2019 
there were 8 members (31 December 2018:8).

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Directors made 
pursuant to s.298(2) of the Corporations Act 2001 on this 22nd 
day of April 2020.

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Directors Eligible 
to attend Attended

Melanie Woosnam 6 6

Stuart Carruthers 6 6

Kenneth Maher (Resigned 15 Nov 2019) 6 4

David Maroney (Resigned 12 Jul 2019) 4 2

Tracey Scott (Resigned 15 Nov 2019) 6 2

Sandra Sully 6 5

Juliet Haslam 6 5

Tracey Belbin (Resigned 15 Nov 2019) 6 5

Patrick Hall 6 6

Colin Richardson 6 5

Bryan Zekulich (Appointed 12 Sep 2019) 2 2

Brent Dancer (Appointed 15 Nov 2019) 0 0

Mary Konstantopoulos  
(Appointed 15 Nov 2019)

0 0

Melanie Woosnam
Director and President

Bryan Zekulich
Finance Director
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Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited (“DTTL”), its global network of member firms, and their 
related entities. DTTL (also referred to as “Deloitte Global”) and each of its member firms and their affiliated entities are 
legally separate and independent entities. DTTL does not provide services to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/about to 
learn more. 
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation 
Member of Deloitte Asia Pacific Limited and the Deloitte Network. 
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The Board of Directors 
Hockey Australia Limited 
Level 5, 409 St. Kilda Road 
MELBOURNE, VIC 3004 
 
 
22 April 2020 
 
 
Dear Board Members, 
 

Hockey Australia Limited 
 
In accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, I am pleased to provide the 
following declaration of independence to the directors of Hockey Australia Limited. 
 
As the lead audit partner for the audit of the financial statements of the Hockey Australia Limited 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2019, I declare to the best of my knowledge and 
belief, there have been no contraventions of: 

(i) the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation 
to the audit; and 

(ii) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU 
 
 
 
 
 
Robert D D Collie 
Partner 
Chartered Accountants 

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu 
ABN 74 490 121 060 
 
550 Bourke Street 
Melbourne VIC 3000 
GPO Box 78 
Melbourne VIC 3001 Australia 
 
DX: 111 
Tel:  +61 (0) 3 9671 7000 
Fax:  +61 (0) 3 9671 7001 
www.deloitte.com.au 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation 

Member of Deloitte Asia Pacific Limited and the Deloitte Network 
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Hockey Australia Limited 
 
Opinion  
 
We have audited the financial report of Hockey Australia Limited (the “Company”) which 
comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and 
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors’ 
declaration.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Company is in accordance with 
the Corporations Act 2001, including:  
 
(i)  giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 31 December 

2019 and of its or financial performance for the year then ended; and   

(ii)  complying with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Regime and 
the Corporations Regulations 2001. 

 
Basis for Opinion  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the auditor independence requirements 
of the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional 
and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the 
Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.  
 
We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, 
which has been given to the directors of the Company, would be in the same terms if 
given to the directors’ as at the time of this auditor’s report. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
 

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu 
ABN 74 490 121 060 
 
550 Bourke Street 
Melbourne VIC 3000 
GPO Box 78 
Melbourne VIC 3001 Australia 
 
DX: 111 
Tel:  +61 (0) 3 9671 7000 
Fax:  +61 (0) 3 9671 7001 
www.deloitte.com.au 
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Other Information  
 
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the director’s report for the year ended 31 December 2019, but does not include the 
financial report and our auditor’s report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  
 
Responsibilities of the Directors’ for the Financial Report 
 
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report 
that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards – 
Reduced Disclosure Regime and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control 
as the director’s determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report 
that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of 
the Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the director’s 
either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as 
a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the 
Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:   
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.  
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• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
control.  
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.  
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the director’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  
 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 
 
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
 
 
 
DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU 
 
 
 
 
Robert D D Collie 
Partner 
Chartered Accountants 
Melbourne, 22 April 2020 
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STRATEGIC PILLAR

In accordance with a resolution of the Board of 
Directors of Hockey Australia, we declare that:

In the opinion of the Directors:

a. there are reasonable grounds to believe that the 
Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they 
become due and payable; and

b. the attached financial statements and notes thereto are 
in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including 
compliance with accounting standards and giving a true 
and fair view of the financial position and performance of 
the entity.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors made 
pursuant to S.295(5) of the Corporations Act 2001.

On behalf of the Directors

Directors' 
Declaration

Melanie Woosnam
Director and President

Bryan Zekulich
Finance Director

Melbourne
22 April 2020
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Income

Government grants 8,326,468 7,185,917

Commercial and business revenue 4,211,766 3,462,801

Special event income 2,216,596 985,332

Total revenue 14,754,830 11,634,050

Expenses

High performance program expenses (6,990,629) (7,030,957)

Marketing and development expenses (2,800,592) (1,518,602)

Event expenses (2,614,435)   (1,494,287)

Operating and administration expenses (2,204,746) (1,480,990)

Total expenses (14,610,402)  (11,524,836)

Net Profit attributable to members  
of Hockey Australia 4                  144,428 109,214

Other comprehensive income – – -

Total comprehensive income  
for the year 144,428 109,214

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should 
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

31 DEC 2019
$

31 DEC 2018
$

Cash and cash equivalents  15(a) 3,247,537 2,011,998

Trade and other receivables 5 547,535 695,669

Inventories 6           245,040      471,350

Other assets 7        541,995    179,519

Total current assets  4,582,107 3,358,536

Non-current assets

Right-of-use assets       8      108,206               –

Plant and equipment       9         90,871  138,300

Total non-current assets  199,077 138,300

Total assets  4,781,184 3,496,836

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 10 1,741,168 1,365,190

Employee provisions 11 277,960 230,814

Lease liabilities 12 108,195 –

Income received in advance 13 1,692,288 1,039,101

Total current liabilities  3,819,611 2,635,105

Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities       12         14,052               –

Employee provisions  11 51,523 85,771

Total non-current liabilities  65,575 85,771

Total liabilities      3,885,186               2,720,876

Net assets  895,998 775,960

Equity

Retained earnings  895,998 775,960

Total equity  895,998 775,960

NOTESCurrent assets
31 DEC 2019

$
31 DEC 2018

$

STATEMENT OF 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2019

STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2019

NOTES

The above Statement of Financial Position should  
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Balance at 1 January 2018 666,746           666,746

Total comprehensive profit for the year 109,214 109,214

Balance at 31 December 2018 775,960        775,960

Adjustment on adoption of AASB16 (2.2) (24,390) (24,390)

Amended Position 1 January 2019 751,570 751,570

Total comprehensive profit for the year 144,428 144,428

Other comprehensive income for the year – –

Total comprehensive profit for the year 144,428 144,428

Balance at 31 December 2019 895,998 895,998

RETAINED
EARNINGS $ TOTAL $

Operating grant receipts 9,877,621 7,883,287

Receipts from members & other sources 6,768,948 4,833,963

Payments to suppliers and employees (15,270,537) (12,346,537)

Interest received 29,648 34,823

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,405,680 405,536

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for purchase of property,  
plant and equipment  (41,442) (91,586)

Payments made to leases    
(interest repayments)  (6,354) –

Net cash used in investing activities  (47,796) (91,586)

Cash flows from financing activities

Payments made to leases  
(principal repayments)  (122,345) –

Net Cash used in financing activities  (122,345) –

Net increase in cash and  
cash equivalents  1,235,539 313,950

Cash and cash equivalents at  
the beginning of the year  2,011,998 1,698,048

Cash and cash equivalents at  
the end of the year 15 3,247,537 2,011,998

Cash flows from operating activities

STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2019

STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2019

NOTES
31 DEC 2019

$
31 DEC 2018

$

The above Statement of changes in equity should  
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



47Hockey Australia Annual Report 2019

1.  GENERAL INFORMATION
Hockey Australia Limited is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated in Victoria and 
operating in Australia.

The Company’s registered office and principal places of business are as follows:

Registered office: 66 Jolimont Street, EAST MELBOURNE VIC 3002
Principal places of business: 66 Jolimont Street, EAST MELBOURNE VIC 3002

and Perth Hockey Stadium, BENTLEY WA 6012

2.   ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED  
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

Hockey Australia has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued 
by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (the AASB) that are relevant to their operations 
and effective for an accounting period that begins on or after 1 January 2019.

New and revised Standards and amendments thereof and Interpretations effective for the 
current year that are relevant to the entity include:

2.1  AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities & AASB 15 Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers
In the current year, Hockey Australia has applied AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities 
and AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers which are effective for an annual period 
that begins on or after 1 January 2019.

Hockey Australia has applied AASB 1058 and AASB 15 in accordance with the modified 
retrospective (cumulative catch up) method where the comparative figures are not restated. 
Instead, the company has recognised the cumulative effect of initially applying AASB 1058 and 
AASB 15 for the first time for the year ending 31 December 2019 against retained earnings as at 
1 January 2019. The company has also elected to apply AASB 1058 and AASB 15 retrospectively 
only to contracts and transactions that are not ‘completed contracts’ as at 1 January 2019.

AASB 1058 clarifies and simplifies the income recognition requirements that apply to not-for-
profit (NFP) entities, in conjunction with AASB 15. The new income recognition requirements 
shift the focus from a reciprocal/non-reciprocal basis to a basis of assessment that considers 
the enforceability of a contract and the specificity of performance obligations.

The core principle of the new income recognition requirements in AASB 1058 is when a NFP 
entity enters into transactions where the consideration to acquire an asset is significantly 
less than the fair value of the asset principally to enable the entity to further its objectives, 
the excess of the asset recognised (at fair value) over any ‘related amounts’ is recognised as 
income immediately.

An example of a ‘related amount’ is AASB 15 and in cases where there is an ‘enforceable’ 
contact with a customer with ‘sufficiently specific’ performance obligations, income is 
recognised when (or as) the performance obligations are satisfied under AASB 15, as opposed 
to immediate income recognition under AASB 1058.

Under AASB 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, 
i.e. when 'control' of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation 
is transferred to the customer. AASB 15 introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition, 
which is more prescriptive than AASB 118.

• Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

• Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract.

• Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

• Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.

• Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The adoption of AASB 15 and 1058 did not have a significant impact on the financial 
performance or position for Hockey Australia for either the current or prior period.

Notes to Financial 
Statements Position



48Hockey Australia Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS POSITION

2.2  AASB 16 Leases
In the current year, Hockey Australia has applied AASB 16 
Leases, which is effective for annual periods that begin on 
or after 1 January 2019. AASB 16 introduces new or amended 
requirements with respect to lease accounting. It introduces 
significant changes to lessee accounting by removing 
the distinction between operating and finance lease and 
requiring the recognition of a right-of-use asset and a lease 
liability at commencement for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets. In contrast to 
lessee accounting, the requirements for lessor accounting 
have remained largely unchanged. Details of these new 
requirements are described in note 3. The impact of the 
adoption of AASB 16 on the Company’s financial statements is 
described below.

The date of initial application of AASB 16 for Hockey Australia 
is 1 January 2019.

Hockey Australia has applied AASB 16 using the cumulative 
catch-up approach which:

• Requires Hockey Australia to recognise the cumulative 
effect of initially applying AASB 16 at the date of initial 
application; and

• Does not permit restatement of comparatives, which 
continue to be presented under AASB 117 and AASB 
Interpretation 4.

Impact of the new definition of a lease

Hockey Australia has made use of the practical expedient 
available on transition to AASB 16 not to reassess whether a 
contract is or contains a lease. Accordingly, the definition of a 
lease in accordance with AASB 117 Leases and Interpretation 
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease will 
continue to be applied to those contracts entered or modified 
before 1 January 2019.

The change in definition of a lease mainly relates to the 
concept of control. AASB 16 determines whether a contract 
contains a lease on the basis of whether the customer has the 
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration. This is in contrast to the 
focus on 'risks and rewards' in AASB 117 and Interpretation 4.

Hockey Australia applies the definition of a lease and related 
guidance set out in AASB 16 to all contracts entered into or 
changed on or after 1 January 2019. In preparation for the first-
time application of AASB 16, Hockey Australia has carried out 
an implementation project.

The project has shown that the new definition in AASB 16 will 
not significantly change the scope of contracts that meet the 
definition of a lease for the Company.

Impact on Lessee Accounting 
Former operating leases

AASB 16 changes how the Company accounts for leases 
previously classified as operating leases under AASB 117, 
which were off balance sheet.

Applying AASB 16, for all leases (except as noted below), the 
Company:

• Recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the 
statement of financial position, initially measured at the 
present value of the future lease payments;

• Recognises depreciation of right-of-use assets and 
interest on lease liabilities in profit or loss; and

• Separates the total amount of cash paid into a principal 
portion (presented within financing activities) and interest 
(presented within financing activities) in the statement of 
cash flows.

Lease incentives (e.g. rent-free period) are recognised as 
part of the measurement of the right-of-use assets and 
lease liabilities whereas under AASB 117 they resulted in the 
recognition of a lease incentive, amortised as a reduction of 
rental expenses generally on a straight-line basis.

Under AASB 16, right-of-use assets are tested for impairment 
in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets. For 
short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and 
leases of low-value assets (such as tablet and personal 
computers, small items of office furniture and telephones), 
Hockey Australia has opted to recognise a lease expense on 
a straight-line basis as permitted by AASB 16. This expense is 
presented within ‘other expenses’ in profit or loss.

Financial impact of the initial application of AASB 16 
Statement of financial position 

The impact on assets, liabilities and equity as at 1 January 
2019 is summarised in the table below:

1 JAN '19 
$’000

Assets

Increase in right-of-use assets 220,202

Liabilities

Increase in current lease liabilities (i) (214,860)

Increase in non-current lease liabilities (i) (29,732)

24,390

Equity

Accumulated losses (24,390)

i. Relates to the present value of future lease payments 
determined in accordance with AASB 16.

ii. Relates to operating lease incentive and straight-line 
liabilities in accordance with AASB 117.

Statement of cash flows The application of AASB 16 has an 
impact on the statement of cash flows of the Company.

Under AASB 16, lessees must present:

• Short-term lease payments, payments for leases of low-
value assets and variable leasepayments not included 
in the measurement of the lease liability as part of 
operatingactivities;

• Cash paid for the interest portion of a lease liability 
as either operating activities orfinancing activities; 
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as permitted by AASB 107 (the Company has opted to 
includeinterest paid as part of operating activities); and

• Cash payments for the principal portion for a lease liability, 
as part of financing activities.

2.3  AASB 2018-3 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements
AASB 2018-3 establishes the disclosure requirements of AASB 
16 Leases in financial statements prepared in accordance 
with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements (RDR). These disclosure requirements 
have been applied by Hockey Australia in presenting and 
disclosing information in these financial statements. AASB 
2018-3 has not had any material impact on the disclosures or 
on the amounts reported in these financial statements.

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

These financial statements are general purpose financial 
statements which have been prepared in accordance with the 
Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting Standards 
– Reduced Disclosure Requirements and comply with other 
requirements of the law. For the purposes of preparing the 
consolidated financial statements, Hockey Australia is a not 
for-profit public Tier 2 entity.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis 
of historical cost, except for certain non-current assets and 
financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts 
or fair values, as explained in the accounting policies below. 
Historical cost is generally based on the fair values of the 
consideration given in exchange for assets. All amounts are 
presented in Australian dollars, unless otherwise noted.

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of 
estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, 
which are described below, the directors are required 

to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other 
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if 
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current 
and future periods.

Long service leave

Management judgement is applied in determining the 
following key assumptions used in the calculation of long 
service leave at reporting date:

• future increases in salaries and wages;

• future on cost rates; and

• experience of employee departures and period of service.

Plant and equipment

Useful lives and residual value of plant and equipment are 
reviewed annually. Judgement is applied in determining 
the useful lives of property, plant and equipment. Any 
reassessment of useful lives and residual value in a particular 
year will affect depreciation and amortisation expense (either 
increasing or decreasing) from the date of reassessment 
through to the end of the reassessed useful life for both the 
current and future years.

Provision for doubtful debts

Management’s judgement is applied in determining the 
provision for doubtful debts. If the estimated recoverable 
amount of the debtor is less than the amount of revenue 
recognised, the difference is recognised in the provision for 
doubtful debts.

The following significant accounting policies have been 
adopted in the preparation and presentation of the  
financial report:

(a) Inventories

Inventories relate to rulebooks, coaching materials and other 
Hockey related merchandise and are measured at the lower 
of cost and net realisable value. Costs are assigned on an 
average cost basis.

(b) Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are carried at cost. All assets are 
depreciated over their useful lives to the Company 
commencing from the time the asset was held ready for use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable 
asset are:

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash 
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that 
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and have a 
maturity of three months or less.

(d) Income

In cases where there is an ‘enforceable’ contract with a 
customer with ‘sufficiently specific’ performance obligations, 
the transaction is accounted for under AASB 15 where income 
is recognised when (or as) the performance obligations are 
satisfied. In all other cases the transaction is accounted  
for under AASB 1058 where the income is recognised  
upon receipt.

Class of fixed assets Depreciation rates

Office equipment 33% – 50%

Motor vehicles 35%

Right of use assets 20% – 33%

Software 33%
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Grant Revenue

Government grant revenue is recognised over time as the 
specific performance obligations of the grant are being 
fulfilled. Where the performance obligations are not 
sufficiently specific, revenue is recognised when the Company 
receives control over the funds.

Commercial and business revenue

Commercial activities income is recognised when amounts 
are due and payable in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the transactions.

• Revenue from State levies and sponsorships is recognised 
over the applicable period of the levies and sponsorship;

• Revenue from event fees is recognised when the event has 
completed; and

• Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point at 
which goods are provided to the customer.

Interest

Interest revenue is recognised as it accrues, taking into 
consideration the effective yield on the financial asset.

Gains

Gains on disposals of items of plant and equipment are 
determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. 
These gains or losses are included in the statement of profit 
or loss and comprehensive income.

(e) Income tax

Hockey Australia Limited is a registered not-for-profit sporting 
organisation and is exempt under the provisions of the 
Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 (as amended). Accordingly, 
no income tax has been provided for in these financial 
statements.

(f) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, Hockey Australia reviews the carrying 
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any 
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment 
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of 
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 

impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to 
sell and value in use.

In respect of not-for-profit entities, where the future economic 
benefits of an asset are not primarily dependent on the 
assets ability to generate net cash inflows and where the 
entity would, if deprived of the asset, replace its remaining 
future economic benefits, value in use is determined as 
the depreciable replacement cost of an asset less, where 
applicable, accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis 
of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired future 
economic benefits of the asset. The current replacement cost 
of an asset is its cost measured by reference to the lowest 
cost at which the gross future economic benefits of that asset 
could currently be obtained in the normal course of business.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less 
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset 
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the 
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised 
estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that 
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of 
an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

(g) Employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in 
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, and long service 
leave when it is probable that settlement will be required, and 
they are capable of being measured reliably.

Liabilities recognised in respect of employee benefits 
expected to be settled within 12 months, are measured at 
their nominal values using the remuneration rate expected to 
apply at the time of settlement.

Liabilities recognised in respect of employee benefits which 
are not expected to be settled within 12 months are measured 
as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to 

be made by the Company in respect of services provided by 
employees up to reporting date.

Contributions are made by the Company to an employee 
superannuation fund and are charged as expenses when 
incurred. The Company has no legal obligation to provide 
benefits to employees on retirement.

(h) Unearned revenue

To the extent that specific grant funding remains unexpended 
at balance date, the surplus is brought to account as a liability 
‘Grants in advance', consistent with provisions embodied 
in the service agreements. Membership revenue which is 
received before balance date and relates to the subsequent 
financial year is brought to account as a liability.

(i) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses are recognised net of GST except where 
GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not 
recoverable from that taxation authority, in which case the 
GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the 
asset or as part of the expense item.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST 
included. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable 
to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or 
payables in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a 
gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising from 
investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, 
or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as operating 
cash flows.

(j) Impairment of trade receivables

Hockey Australia recognises lifetime expected credit losses 
(‘ECL’) for trade receivables. The expected credit losses are 
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for 
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic 
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as 
the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, 
including time value of money where appropriate.
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(k) Leased non-current assets

Hockey Australia assesses whether a contract is or contains 
a lease, at inception of the contract. It recognises a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect 
to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except 
for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 
12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these 
leases, Hockey Australia recognises the lease payments 
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more 
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits 
from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of 
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement 
date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this 
rate cannot be readily determined, Hockey Australia uses its 
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease 
liability comprise:

• Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed 
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

• Variable lease payments that depend on an index or 
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the 
commencement date;

• The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under 
residual value guarantees;

• The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is 
reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

• Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the 
lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate 
the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the 
statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the 
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using 
the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying 
amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of 

the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at 
or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives 
received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently 
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period 
of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a lease 
transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the 
right-of-use asset reflects that Hockey Australia expects to 
exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is 
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The 
depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in 
statement of financial position.

Hockey Australia applies AASB 136 Impairment of Assets 
to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and 
accounts for any identified impairment loss as described in 
the ‘Property, plant and equipment’ policy.
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4.  PROFIT/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR

Trade receivables 545,316 509,036

Allowance for expected credit loss – (12,159)

 545,316 496,877

Stock on hand – at cost             245,040 471,350

Office equipment - at cost               430,577 389,134

Current

The average credit period on trade purchases is 30 days (2018: 30 days). No interest 
is charged by trade creditors.

Prepayments 541,995 179,519

Right-of-use asset – Melbourne office lease 312,633 –

Right-of-use asset – office equipment 36,275 –

Less accumulated amortisation (225,791) –

Less accumulated amortisation (14,911) –

Other receivables 2,219 198,792          

 547,535 695,669

Profit for the year has been arrived at after crediting/(charging) the following 
items of income and expense:

5.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

10.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

6.  INVENTORIES

9.  PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

11.  EMPLOYEE PROVISIONS
7.  OTHER ASSETS

Net carrying amount 86,842 –

Net carrying amount 21,364 –

The average trade credit period is 30 days (2018: 30 days).

31 DEC 2019
$

31 DEC 2018
$

31 DEC 2018
$

31 DEC 2019
$

Interest received 29,649 34,823

Employee benefit expense (4,375,609)  (4,032,055)

Depreciation and amortisation (200,867) (47,951)

Inventory write-down (117,543) –  

Bad debt (write-off)/reversal 20,373 (7,929)

8.  RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Total right-of-use assets 108,206 –

Balance at the beginning of the year 138,300 97,528

Accumulated depreciation (339,706) (250,834)

Additions for the year 41,442 91,586

Total plant and equipment 90,871 138,300

Disposals during the year at cost – (17,876)

Movement in total plant and equipment

Disposals from accumulated depreciation during the year – 15,013

Depreciation expense (88,871) (47,951)

Balance at the end of the year 90,871 138,300

Trade payables  574,028 598,629 

Cash held on behalf of self-funded groups 471,577 269,850

Sundry creditors and accruals  695,563 496,711

Total trade and other payables 1,741,168 1,365,190

Annual leave 231,340 230,814

Long service leave 46,620 –

 277,960 230,814
Non-current

Long service leave 51,523 85,771

Total employee provisions 329,483 316,585

The current portion of these liabilities represents Hockey Australia’s obligation to 
which employees have a current legal entitlement.
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12.  LEASE LIABILITIES 31 DEC 2019
$

31 DEC 2018
$

Not later than one year 103,660 –

Later than one year but not later than 5 years 23,494  –

Minimum lease payments 127,154 –

Less: Future finance charges (4,907) –  

Provided for in the financial statements 122,247 –

Representing lease liabilities

Current 108,195 –

Non-current 14,052 –

Total lease liabilities 122,247 –

Deferred revenue comprising

13.  INCOME RECEIVED IN ADVANCE

Sponsorship 74,334 134,476

Australian Sports Commission and other grants 1,617,954 904,625

 1,692,288 1,039,101

14.  REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

Audit of the financial report 20,850 20,200

Assistance with the preparation of the financial report – 3,500

 20,850 23,700

The auditor of the Company is Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

15.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank  1,736,012 704,495

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes 
cash on hand and in banks and investments in money market instruments, net of 
outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year as shown 
in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items in the statement of 
financial position as follows:

31 DEC 2019
$

31 DEC 2018
$

Term deposits 1,000,000 1,000,000

Bank guarantee 39,948 37,653

 3,247,537 2,011,998

Cash held on behalf of self-funded groups 471,577 269,850

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily deposit rates.  
Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three 
months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of Hockey Australia, and  
earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Cash held on behalf of self-funded groups relates to cash at bank held on behalf of our 
country, indoor, men’s and women’s master’s groups that must be spent at the direction 
of these groups in accordance with their scheduled activities.

Of the above cash and cash equivalents $2,089,531 (FY18: $1,174,475) is restricted 
funding that relates to grant funding received in advance that must be spent in 
accordance with grant terms and conditions and cash held on behalf of  
self-funded groups.

Cash on hand and at bank 3,247,537 2,011,998

Total financial assets 3,795,072 2,707,667

Trade and other receivables (net) 547,535 695,669

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted (including the 
criteria for recognition, the bases of measurement, and the bases for recognition of 
income and expenses) for each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity 
instrument are disclosed in note 3.

The Company’s principal financial instruments comprise receivables, payables, cash 
and short-term deposits. These activities expose the Company to a variety of financial 
risks: market risk (including interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. 

The Company holds the following financial instruments:

16.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

(i) Categories of financial instruments
Financial assets

31 DEC 2019
$

31 DEC 2018
$
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amount used 39,948 37,653

Trade and other payables 1,741,168 1,365,190

 39,948 37,653

Net exposure 2,053,904 1,342,477

amount unused - -

(ii) Financing facilities
Secured
Bank guarantee

Financial liabilities

16.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31 DEC 2019
$

31 DEC 2018
$

Short term employee benefits  1,231,825       1,320,381

The key management personnel during the year were:

Mr M. Favier (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms S. Wharekawa (Chief Financial Officer) – Resigned 31 May 2019
Ms L. Watt (GM – Finance, HR & Administration) – Commenced 21 August 2019
Ms T. Cumpston (High Performance Director)
Mr P. Gaudoin (Head Coach – Women)
Mr C. Batch (Head Coach – Men)
Ms V. Stisen (GM – Commercial) – Resigned 11 January 2019 
Mr T. Cherry (GM – Commercial, Communications & Events) – Commenced 8 July 2019
Mr M. Johnston (GM – Strategy & Game Development)

The aggregate compensation made to key management personnel of the Company is  
set out below:

17.  KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION 

 1,364,767       1,447,710                   

Post-employment benefits 113,283        116,795

Other long term employee benefits 10,233        –

Termination benefits  9,426       10,534

The company provides all salary information to the Australian Sports Commission, 
which is used for confidential benchmarking on salaries paid in comparison to other 
similarly funded national sporting organisations.

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or 
received. No expense has been recognised in the current or prior periods for bad or doubtful debts in 
respect of the amounts owed by related parties. 

19.  ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE
A significant portion of revenue is received by way of recurrent grants from Sports Australia, the 
operating brand name of the Australian Sports Commission (ASC), a Commonwealth entity within the 
Australian Government’s Department of Health Portfolio.

18.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
No member of the Board has received, or has become entitled to receive, a benefit by reason of a contract made 
by the Company with a member of the Board or with a firm of which he or she is member or with a company 
in which he or she has a substantial financial interest. Transactions between Hockey Australia and its Board 
members have occurred within the normal relationship between the Company and its directors.

During the year, Hockey Australia entered into the following trading transactions with each of the State Sporting 
Organisations that are members of Hockey Australia Limited:

 CONTRIBUTIONS FROM RELATED PARTIES CONTRIBUTIONS TO RELATED PARTIES

Hockey ACT 120,897 161,991 12,225 41,439

Hockey NSW 571,998 603,139 8,778 23,671

Hockey Queensland 115,981 401,078 128,359 157,151

Hockey SA 49,999 220,970 – 2,985

Hockey Victoria 295,278 454,314 285,338 73,791

Hockey Tasmania 140,861 160,121 57,480 42,894

Hockey WA 127,050 486,924 139,849 157,525

NT Hockey Association  16,696 49,726 2,566 71,266

The following balances were outstanding at the end of the reporting year:

 AMOUNTS OWED BY RELATED PARTIES AMOUNTS OWED TO RELATED PARTIES

Hockey ACT 1,640 49,697 – 484

Hockey NSW 5,118 57,081 – 5,421

Hockey Queensland 13,905 41,612 8,389 –

Hockey SA 6,239 66,738 – 944

Hockey Victoria 10,731 11,640 – 3,300

Hockey Tasmania 1,734 63,263 – 460

Hockey WA 119,082 550 150 26,505

NT Hockey Association  - - - -

31 DEC 2019
$

31 DEC 2018
$

31 DEC 2019
$

31 DEC 2018
$

31 DEC 2019
$

31 DEC 2018
$

31 DEC 2019
$

31 DEC 2018
$
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20.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
No contingent liabilities have been noted at 31 December 
2019 (FY18: $Nil).

21.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The outbreak of COVID-19 and the subsequent quarantine 
measures imposed by the Australian and other governments 
as well as the travel and trade restrictions imposed by 
Australia and other countries in early 2020 have caused 
disruption to businesses and economic activity. Hockey 
Australia Limited considers this to be a non-adjusting post 
balance sheet event and accordingly the financial effects of 
COVID-19 have not been reflected in the financial report as at 
31 December 2019.

As the situation remains fluid (due to the evolving changes 
in government policy and evolving business and customer 
reactions thereto) as at the date these financial statements 
are authorised for issue, the directors of Hockey Australia 
Limited considered that the financial effects of COVID-19 
on the financial report cannot be reasonably estimated for 
future financial periods. However, the directors consider 
that the general economic impacts arising from COVID-19 
are expected to have a negative impact on revenue given 
the reliance on participation for subscriptions and fees, the 
deferment or cancellation of competitions and events and the 
refinement of programs. Hockey Australia is also reviewing all 
programs and expenditure and registering for government 
stimulus measures as applicable. The economic effects 
arising from the COVID-19 outbreak are expected to materially 
affect the results of the entity for the full year of 2020.

The financial report has been prepared on the basis that 
Hockey Australia is a going concern, despite the significant 
impact of COVID-19 on operations. The going concern 
basis is considered appropriate due to the cash reserves 
held, government stimulus and the entity’s ability to reduce 
costs and generate sufficient funds from grant funding, 
membership subscriptions and sponsorship to meet its debts 
as and when they become due and payable and to continue to 
fund its ongoing operations.

No other matter or circumstance has occurred subsequent to 
year end that has significantly affected, or may significantly 
affect, the operations of the entity, the results of those 
operations or the state of affairs of the entity in subsequent 
financial years.



56Hockey Australia Annual Report 2019

M Fox*
E Thompson*
J H Powell* (1947)
H A Cormie MBE* (1949)
Dr M Hamilton* (1949)
A H Imrie* (1949)
A C Margarey* (1949) 
L Morris* (1949)
K Ogilvie* (1949)
D Somerville AM* (1949) 
R Taylor* (1949)
E Tazewell* (1949)
N Wicks* (1949) 
F Bage* (1950)
D M Friend* (1950) 
M Irving* (1950)
M Campbell OBE* (1951) 
A Clarke* (1951)
W Rothwell* (1951) 
O P Wood* (1953)
D Paul MBE* (1954)
C Charlesworth* (1954) 
F H Levy* (1956)
N J Marshall* (1957)
K Langan* (1958)
F Newson* (1959)
R Robinson AM MBE* (1959) 
P Goodridge* (1960)
G Moir* (1961)
E Redfern* (1964) 

N Clarke (1969)
M Wilson AM (1971) 
D Corrigan* (1972)
M Josiffe* (1972)
L Hodges* (1973)
L Jolly OAM* (1973)
F McNab OBE* (1974) 
N O’Shea* (1974)
M Baker AM* (1976)
J Ferguson* (1976)
A B Hardham OBE* (1978)
E Eastman (1978)
G W Moessinger AM* (1980)
V Schaeffer* (1985)
S Jamieson* (1985)
B Brownlow OAM* (1986) 
M Murray (1986)
J Webster OAM* (1986)
F Yeend AM* (1986) 
PG Ryan OBE* (1988)
J Viertel OAM (1988)
H A Nederveen AM* (1990)
Sir Geoffrey Yeend AC CBE* (1991)
S Davies AM (1994)
P L Cohen OAM AM (1995) 
L Hailey AM* (1996)
J Hampton (1996)
C B Nicholas OAM (1997)
S B Pitt AM* (1998)
M Cormack* (1999)

S Leece (1999)
P March (1999)
H Oldenhove (1999) 
R Pascoe (1999)
D Pirie MBE (1999)
J Slade OAM (1999)
P Tye AM (1999)
A Berry OAM* (2000) 
D Piper (2000)
J Quaite OAM* (2000)
H Scraggs OAM (2001) 
G Reid (2001)
D Meredith AM (2002)
J Mackinnon (2007)
R Aggiss AM (2008)
G Browning (2010)
B Dancer (2012)
F Murray (2012)
R Charlesworth AO (2015)
M Craig (2017)
M Ryan (2017)
K Read (2018) 
R Stern AM (2018)
C Dakiniewicz (2019)
B Glencross OAM (2019)
J Hadfield AM (2019)
D Prior (2019)
 
*Deceased

LIFE MEMBERS HALL OF FAME

Julius (Jim) Abel 
Australian Debut 1922  
New South Wales 

Alyson Annan OAM
Australian Debut 1991
New South Wales 
Marian Aylmore  
(nee Bell) 
Australian Debut 1974  
Western Australia

Robyn Bannerman OAM
(Davis, nee Downey) 
Australian Debut 1975  
New South Wales (Umpire)

David Bell OAM  
Australian Debut 1975  
Western Australia 

Robyn Bennett (nee Ding)  
Australian Debut 1959
Western Australia 

Cecil Best  
Australian Debut 1932
Queensland

Warren Birmingham  
Australian Debut 1984  
New South Wales

Greg Browning  
Australian Debut 1969 
Queensland

Sharon Buchanan OAM  
(Patmore/Reid) 
Australian Debut 1980  
Western Australia

May Campbell  
(nee Pearce)  
Australian Debut 1934 
Western Australia

Kevin Carton   
Australian Debut 1956 
Western Australia  

Connie Charlesworth
Australian Debut 1927
Tasmania

Olga Corrigan 
(nee Hampson)
Australian Debut 1948
New South Wales

Stephen Davies
Australian Debut 1989 
New South Wales

Paul Dearing
Australian Debut 1963
New South Wales

Ian Dick  
Australian Debut 1948  
Western Australia

Raymond (Ray) Evans  
Australian Debut 1960  
Western Australia

Roslyn Fisher (nee Noel)  
Australian Debut 1960  
Western Australia

Brian Glencross OAM 
Australian Debut 1964 
Western Australia

Pamela Glossop 
Australian Debut 1975 
Queensland

Dianne Gorman OAM 
(nee Dowd) 
Australian Debut 1972 
New South Wales

Mavis Gray (nee Beckett)  
Australian Debut 1969 
Western Australia

Mark Hager 
Australian Debut 1985  
Queensland

Robert Haigh  
Australian Debut 1966  
South Australia

June Haines
(nee Capes-Harding)  
Australian Debut 1959  
Western Australia

Judy Humphries  
(nee Burgess) 
Australian Debut 1965  
Tasmania

Audrey James (nee Jones)  
Australian Debut 1946
Victoria

Kay Lehmann 
(nee Kindervater)  
Australian Debut 1965
Queensland

John McBryde 
Australian Debut 1960 
Queensland

Jim McDowell 
Australian Debut 1952 
Victoria (Umpire)

Ena McRae  
Australian Debut 1930 
New South Wales

Don McWatters 
Australian Debut 1961 
Queensland

Charlie Morley 
Australian Debut 1948 
Victoria

Jenny Morris OAM 
Australian Debut 1992 
Queensland

Nikki Hudson OAM 
(nee Mott) 
Australian Debut 1993 
Queensland

Patrick (Pat) Nilan 
Australian Debut 1961 
New South Wales

Merle Elaine Nish 
(nee Taylor) 
Australian Debut 1928
Victoria

Laurie Packham 
Australian Debut 1960 
Western Australia

Kath Partridge 
Australian Debut 1985 
New South Wales

Eric Pearce 
Australian Debut 1956 
Western Australia

Gordon Pearce 
Australian Debut 1956 
Western Australia

Julian Pearce 
Australian Debut 1956 
Western Australia

Jackie Pereira OAM 
Australian Debut 1986 
Western Australia

Desmond Piper 
Australian Debut 1960 
Victoria

Katrina Powell OAM 
Australian Debut 1994 
ACT

Don Prior  
Australian Debut 1985  
South Australia (Umpire)

Wendy Pritchard 
(nee Butcher) 
Australian Debut 1965 
Western Australia

Colleen Quinn (nee Noel)  
Australian Debut 1959  
New South Wales

Marjory Rigg  
(nee Crossen)
Australian Debut 1951 
Western Australia

Ron Riley OAM 
Australian Debut 1967 
New South Wales 

Donald Smart 
Australian Debut 1961  
Western Australia

Hall of Fame and Life Members
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Merv Adams*
Richard Aggiss AM
Colin Batch
Alan Berry*
Warren Birmingham
Bob Blackbell*
Greg Browning
Bert Brownlow OAM
Graham Carter
Peter Carter AM*
Richard Charlesworth AO
Alan Cooper
Alan Cowan*
Michael Craig
Colin Crain*
Ken Crispo*
Max Daglish*
Barry Dancer
Albert Dilano*
Jack Edsall*
J. Stewart Embling*
Jack G. Evans*
Herb Fibbins*
Bruce Garratt
Don Germein*
Tony Galvin
Gorden Getley
John Giles
Doug Gill*

Brian Glencross OAM
Bruce Goodheart OBE*
Merv Goodridge*
Ivan Green
Stan Griffin
Mark Hager
Robert Haigh
Lou Hailey AM*
Colin Harding*
Doug Hill AM
Roy Holmes*
Jim Irvine
Stewart Jamieson*
T.P (Pat) Jones*
Keith Kemp*
John Leece
Paul Lewis
John MacKinnon
John Mahony*
Allan Martin
Malcolm McCrae*
Don McWatters
Dennis Meredith AM
Ron Mills*
Frank Murray
Keith Murton
Jack Nation*
David Olsen
Laurie Parkes*

Bruce Pitt OAM
Ian Pitt*
Wendy Pritchard
Jim Quaite OAM*
Graham Reid
Noel Richardson
Norm Richardson*
Ron Riley OAM
John Sanders
John Sands*
Doug Schirripa
Fred Sermon*
John Soundy
Ivan Spedding*
Harry Spice*
Keith Thornton*
Glen Twidale
Grant Waddell*
David Wansbrough
Ken Wark
Bruce Watt*
Lindsay Weate
Bill Weidner
Arthur Weir*
James Williams
George Willoughby OAM*
Minka Woolley

*Deceased

MERIT AWARD

HALL OF FAME – LEGENDS

Alyson Annan OAM  
Australian Debut 1991 
New South Wales

Rechelle Hawkes AM 
Australian Debut 1985 
Western Australia

Richard Charlesworth AO  
Australian Debut 1972  
Western Australia

Hall of Fame and Life Members

AWARD OF DISTINCTION RECIPIENTS

Geraldton Hockey Association WA
Southern Hockey Association TAS

HALL OF FAME (CONT.)

Trevor Smith  
Australian Debut 1971  
South Australia

Des Spackman 
Australian Debut 1956  
New South Wales

Jay Stacy 
Australian Debut 1987 
Victoria

Evelyn Tazwell  
Australian Debut 1925  
South Australia

Liane Tooth OAM 
Australian Debut 1984  
New South Wales

Terrance (Terry) Walsh  
Australian Debut 1975 
Western Australia

Kenneth Wark  
Australian Debut 1985 
New South Wales

Petoria (Tori) Wicks  
Australian Debut 1927  
New South Wales

Jean Wynne (nee Pearce) 
Australian Debut 1948  
Western Australia

Michael York  
Australian Debut 1987  
New South Wales
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Sponsors
Central to increasing the commercial viability of hockey is the 
retention and growth of existing partners and the addition of 
new partners. HA has been fortunate to have the wonderful 
long-term support of Fortescue Metals Group (FMG) - major 
sponsor of the Kookaburras and Ausdrill (Perenti Group) – 
major sponsor of the Hockeyroos. In 2019 both businesses 
extended their partnership for a further two years each - 
taking each partnership to beyond a decade. Relationships 
that are built on mutual respect, trust, and results. In 2019, we 
welcomed the fantastic support from Commonwealth Games 
Australia, which has been significant in supporting our junior 
pathway programs. 

FMG also continue their support of the Pilbara Community 
Hockey Program which now includes hockey programs being 
run in 12 schools and the support of two hockey associations. 
A program that is wonderfully supported by past and present 
Kookaburras and Hockeyroos who visit the region to pass on 
their leadership and playing skills.

HA was delighted to announce the re-signing of Kookaburra 
Sport, long-term supporter of Australian hockey. 

Hockey Australia is also grateful to On The Go Sports (OTG), 
SportsLink Travel, Bloomex, Just Hockey, ASICS, TigerTurf, 
CTM, Aqualyte, 2XU, APE Medical and Elastoplast (Biersdorf) 
for their ongoing support and contribution to not just HA but 
to the broader hockey community. 

Hockey Australia was delighted to have the iconic Kellogg join 
our sponsor family via one of their leading breakfast cereal 
brands - Sultana Bran. This is testament to the values that 
both Kellogg and hockey share - family friendly, inclusiveness, 
gender equality and integrity. Sultana Bran joined Hockey 
One as the inaugural naming rights partner and as the official 
breakfast cereal of the Kookaburras and Hockeyroos.

Also joining our sponsor family is one of Australia’s largest 

and most trusted health insurance brands – Westfund. 
Westfund are supporting both the Sultana Bran Hockey One 
League as well as the Kookaburras and Hockeyroos as the 
official health insurer.

We thank both Kellogg and Westfund for their support and 
look forward to many years of sustained growth and success.

As part of our strategy to become more digitally agile,  
Hockey Australia has partnered with YouGov to better 
understand our fans through deep dive consumer insights. 
HA also continues the successful partnership with Kore 
Konnect to ensure all aspects of our sponsor agreements are 
recorded, tracked and are able to be reported on in a timely 
and efficient manner. 

We sincerely thank all of our wonderful partners for their 
ongoing support.
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SPONSORS

Hockey Australia would like to thank its 
2019 partners and sponsors

MEDICAL

Major Partners

Official Partners

Official Sponsors & Category Partners
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THANK YOU

Hockey Australia would like to express  
its sincere thanks and gratitude to each  
Member Association for their support, 
strategic input, investment in time and 
collaboration to deliver a successful 2019. 

In particular, the bringing to life of the 
Sultana Bran Hockey One League and  
the successful delivery of the inaugural  
FIH Pro League and National Championships.
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